[image: image49.png]


Master thesis

[image: image50.png]


ERASMUS UNIVERSITY ROTTERDAM

FACULTY OF ECONOMICS AND BUSINESS

MASTER ACCOUNTING AND FINANCE  [image: image51.png]



Economic consequences of introduction of IFRS

The impact of IFRS on the cost of equity capital in Germany
	Author:
	Renu Lachminarein 

	Student Number:
	290782

	Date:
	07/10/2010

	Place:
	Rotterdam

	Coach:
	Drs. R.D. Achaibersing RA

	Co-Reader:
	Dr.Drs.Drs. C. Esseboom  


Preface
The education on the Erasmus University Rotterdam, faculty of Economic and Business should be finished with a thesis. This thesis is related to the Master program Accounting & Finance. This has resulted in a research concerning IFRS related economic consequences.

First of all, I had to investigate and read articles concerning the IFRS and the changes after the mandatory of IFRS. There was all kind of research articles with different outcomes about the economic consequences using IFRS. But the focus of this research was based on German stock exchange quoted companies. It was very hard to find an article related to the German companies.

One of the researches was performed by Daske (2006) for the country Germany. The rest of the related articles were based on different countries with different outcomes.
After reading many scientific papers, gathering data from external sources, and performing a number of tests I was able to present this research. I would like to thank the Datastream staff of the Erasmus University Rotterdam to providing me the ability for collecting the required data for my research. And in addition I would like to thank Drs. R.D. Achaibersing RA for his coordination for my research.
Renu Lachminarain

Rotterdam, 21 September 2010

Abstract


Since January 1, 2005 when IFRS became mandatory there was a change in the cost of equity capital for some companies in different countries.  The introduction of IFRS causes lower or higher cost of equity capital for some companies. In this research the economic consequence of using IFRS is determined based on prior research en literature.
The purpose of this paper is to examine of the introduction of IFRS causes a lower or higher cost of equity capital by German stock exchange quoted companies. In this case, the research question is defined as follow:

“Has the introduction of IFRS lead to a lower cost of equity capital in Germany?”

First of all, the background of IFRS was necessary to explain before continuing this research, because the main subject is the relation among the introduction of IFRS and the cost of equity capital. The prior research of Daske (2006) concludes an increase in the cost of equity capital by using the IFRS in Germany. Daske’s research period was from 1993 to 2002. This research has a research period from 2002 to 2007 and the focus also lies in Germany. This research used the German stock exchange quoted companies (DAX 100). Despite of the difference in research time the purpose of this research is to support the conclusion of Daske (2006). Before this research can support Daske’s conclusion there are some prior research to do on several subjects like:

· background of IFRS and German GAAP, 
· the economic consequences of using IFRS, 
· the prior literature

· develop methodology 
· data and sample collection

This paper presents prior literature review about the relation between the transition from local GAAP to IFRS and the cost of equity capital. The focus of this prior research was country specific and Europe. But those prior literatures that are used in this paper concentrate on the relation between the introduction of IFRS and the cost of equity capital. The hypothesis in this research is based on the outcomes of the existing literature and is as followed:
H0: The introduction of IFRS in Germany led not to a lower cost of equity capital.  

H1: The introduction of IFRS in Germany led to a lower cost of equity capital.
The research is a data research with execution in statistical program SPSS. To test the hypothesis a research method has been developed: a 3-step approach research method. 

The expectation before doing this research was that by the introduction of IFRS there will be an increase in the cost of equity capital in Germany. Unfortunately, after doing the research the results shows a decrease in the cost of equity capital by using the IFRS in Germany for stock exchanged quoted companies.  

In this research, there are two limitations. One of the limitations is that the focus of this research lies on Germany, German stock exchanged quoted companies. And the second one is that the companies in the financial and investment sector are excluded. Only the companies have been selected that are mandatory to adopt IFRS as accounting standards. 
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Chapter 1
Introduction

On June 2003, the IASB published the first time adoption of the International Financial Reporting Standards that is called IFRS. One of the main approaches in IFRS is the preparation of an opening balance sheet in accordance with the IFRS. In addition, one of the main goals of the introduction of IFRS is to improve the accounting quality and so to improve the transparency of the accounting reports.
1.1
IFRS

 “International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) are accounting rules (standards) issued by the International Accounting Standard Board, an independent organization based in London, UK (Ball 2005, 2)” 

The introduction of the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) for listed companies in countries around the world is one of the mainly significant regulatory changes in the accounting history (Daske et al. 2008). Since April 2001, the International Accounting Standard Committee has been taken over by the newly reconstituted International Accounting Standard Board (IASB
). ASB publishes the rules under the new label the "International Financial Reporting Standards" (IFRS). 

All countries of the European Union and nearly 100 countries around the world require or permit the use of IFRS. The application of IFRS around the world will continue grow. By using IFRS the differences in the accounting standards between the different countries will disappear, like the United States (US) standards and the most national standards in the European Union. Based on this development no differences will exist in the drafting of the financial statements. The introduction of the IFRS standards however leads to various economic consequences. The next paragraph will presents the subject economic consequences.
1.2

Economic Consequences

The economic consequences as a result of changes in accounting standards are important. Zeff (1978, 56) defines economic consequences as: “the impact of accounting reports on the decision-making behavior of business, government, unions, investors and creditors”. Introduction of accounting standards, like IFRS, has an impact on the economic decisions of different constituencies.

In the prior literature concerning the definition of economic consequences, all of the authors use the definition of Zeff. The essence of the definitions is that accounting reports can affect the real decisions made by managers and others, rather than simply reflecting the results of these decisions. Sometimes an accounting standard is meant to have economic consequences. 

Tang (1994) concludes that the introduction of international standards could lead to economic consequences, because companies will adjust their behavior to maximize wealth within the new standards. The IFRS is an example of the introduction of international standards. The conclusion of Tang about the economic consequences of introduction of international standards is applicable to the introduction of IFRS.

1.3 
Purpose of the research 


The introduction of IFRS in 2005 caused different economic consequences. The main subject of the studies is the relation among the introduction of IFRS and cost of equity capital. The prior studies examined what the influence was for the cost of equity capital by the transition from different GAAP’s to the IFRS. For instance, the transition from US GAAP, German GAAP or Dutch GAAP to IFRS. There is one study of Daske (2006) that concludes an increase in the cost of equity capital by using the IFRS. The focus in this thesis is also on the transition from German GAAP to IFRS. The research method will be different
 in contrary to Daske (2006). The aim of this thesis is to support the conclusions of Daske (2006). The aim is to examine whether this research has the same conclusion of Daske (2006) by using another research method. When the outcomes of this thesis are that introduction of IFRS has not led to a higher cost of equity capital than it’s possible that the results are depended on the used research method. Another reason could be the influence of the credit crunch. Now, the challenge is to examine what kind of result will be determined in this thesis. There are two main reasons if the result will be different than the conclusion of Daske (2006). 

1.4
 Research question

The introduction of the IFRS standards leads to various economic consequences according to prior studies. The focus of this paper lies on the change of cost of equity capital as an economic consequence of the introduction of IFRS. This paper examines the relationship between the introduction of IFRS in 2005 and the cost of equity capital. The research question is following:
“Has the introduction of IFRS lead to a lower cost of equity capital in Germany?”

 To answer the main research question the following sub question need to be answered:

1. What is the content of the term economic consequences?

2. What are the differences / resemblances between the IFRS and the German GAAP?

3. What is the main aim of IFRS?

4. What is the content of cost of equity capital? 

5. What kind of models is there to calculate the cost of equity capital?

6. What is shown by prior literature concerning cost of equity capital in Germany?

7. Which effects of using IFRS on the cost of equity capital is shown by prior literature?

8. Are there any differences on the economic consequences of using IFRS across different countries?
1.5 
Methodology 

The way this research thesis has been developed is as follows: the first part will be the theoretical part and the second will be the empirical part. The intention of the theoretical part is to present theoretical background information about the subject of the thesis. It is important to understand the concept about the economic consequences, IFRS and cost of capital. After this concept the content of IFRS in comparison with the content of the former German Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) will be presented. The essential changes related the cost of equity capital is commented. After the comparison, the content of the term Cost of Equity Capital will be commented. The theoretical part will be ended with a literature review about prior studies related to the subject of the thesis. The studies will be divided into three groups. The first study consist outcome that IFRS has led to a higher cost of equity capital. Second group consist of studies with the outcomes that IFRS has led to a lower cost of capital. The third group consists of studies with mixed outcomes.

The second part is the empirical part. In the empirical part the relation between the introduction of IFRS and cost of equity capital will be examined. The empirical part can be dividing in two subparts, first subpart presents the research methodology and the second subpart presents the empirical analyses of the data. The research method for the thesis is described in the first subpart. The sample consists out all German listed companies listed on the Deutscher Aktienindex 100 (DAX 100
) and the sample period is 2002 – 2007. For conducting the research a three step approach is developed. The first step is to determine the cost of equity capital for each firm year. The regression model is developed in the second step. The dependent, independent, and control variables are defined in this step. The data for the variables were found in financial databases. In the third step the data will be presented as an output of SPSS. In the second subpart of the empirical analyses the SPSS output will be analyzed. 

1.6 
Study relevance

The literature review, in chapter 4, discusses the prior studies related on this thesis subject. The main subject of the studies is the relation among the introduction of IFRS and cost of equity capital. The prior studies examined what the influence was for the cost of equity capital by the transition from different GAAP’s to the IFRS. For instance, the transition from US GAAP, German GAAP or Dutch GAAP to IFRS.  There is one study with the transition from German GAAP to IFRS. The study was done by Daske (2006). He concludes that the introduction of IFRS has led to a higher cost of equity capital. The focus in this thesis is also on the transition from German GAAP to IFRS and the economic consequences of this transition. 

Considering the paragraph above, this study contributes the academic literature in two ways. First, it provides more clearly and relevant insights in which way the cost of equity capital has developed on the German market after mandatory IFRS adoption, beside the study of Daske (2006). As mentioned before, aim of this thesis is to try to support the existing literature of Daske (2006). Second, this study contributes to the empirical research on the economic consequences of introduction of IFRS on German market.  

1.7
Structure

The structure of the final paper will be organized as follows: Chapter 2 includes the definition and theoretical background of IFRS and cost of equity capital. Furthermore, the introduction of IFRS and the characteristics of IFRS will be explained. In addition, the differences between IFRS and the German GAAP will be given. This chapter includes also the relation between IFRS and cost of capital. Chapter 3 consist the models for computing the cost of equity capital. Chapters 4 consist of prior literature concerning the economic consequences on the cost of capital in different countries. The hypothesis that will be test and the research methodology of this research will be included in chapter 5. Chapter 6 consist the statistical test to answer the main research question. Finally, chapter 7 consist conclusion based on the result obtained from statistical test and a number of suggestion for further research will be given.

Chapter 2
IFRS 

In this chapter the main subjects are IFRS and cost of equity capital. The following paragraph will explain the introduction of IFRS and some theoretical background. Furthermore, the definition of cost of equity capital and the relation between IFRS and cost of equity capital will be explained. 

2.1
 Introduction of IFRS

The definition of IFRS is as follows: International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) are accounting rules (standards) issued by the International Accounting Standard Board (IASB), an independent organization based in London, UK (Ball 2005, 2)”. According to Ball, the intension of these IFRS accounting rules is that they ideally would apply equally to financial reporting by public companies worldwide” (Ball 2005, 2-3). Between 1973 and 2000, international standards were issued by the IASB’s organization, the International Accounting Standards Committee (IASC), a body established in 1973 by the professional accountancy bodies in several countries
. During that period, the IASC’s rules were described as “International Accounting Standards” (IAS). The IASB describes the rules under the new label “International Financial Reporting Standards”, (IFRS). 

2.1.1
Characteristic of IFRS     
The IFRS standards are ‘uniform standards’. The term ‘uniform standard’ means that these standards are applicable for all public companies. According Ball (2005, 8-9) there are at least three major advantages of uniform standards: 
1. The uniform rules only need to be invented once. These rules are “public goods”, what means that every company can use the rules without any financial consequences;

2. IFRS gives auditors protection against managers who are searching for an auditor who will give an unqualified opinion on a more favorable rule. It protects auditors if all are required to enforce a set uniform standard;

3. It eliminates informational externalities arising from lack of comparability. If firms and/or countries use different accounting techniques they can impose costs on others due to lack of comparability.

The implementation of International Financial Reporting Standards has led to numerous comments that IFRS are full fair value based standards (Cairns 2006, 5). The thought is incorrect about that IFRS are full fair value based standards. The following subparagraph presents the concept of fair value and discusses why IFRS is not a full fair value based standard. 

2.1.2
Fair Value 

IFRS 2 defines fair value as: “The amount for which an asset could be exchanged, a liability settled or an equity instrument granted could be exchanged, between knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s length transaction” (Cairns 2006, 5).

The IFRS standards are not a full fair value accounting standard. The IFRS are based more on the fair value than several local GAAPs, especially Dutch GAAP which incorporates historical cost accounting. According to Cairns (2006, 7), IFRS requires or allows the use of fair value in financial statements in four ways:

1. For the measurement of transactions at initial recognition in the financial statements:

The IASC requires the use of fair value to measure transactions to determine the cost of assets and liabilities;

2. For the allocation of the initial amount at which a transaction is recognized among its constituent parts:

An example of a compound transaction is a business combination. “The acquirer has measures the cost of acquisition at the fair value of the consideration given but then needs to allocate that cost of acquisition to the acquired assets and liabilities” (Cairns 2006, 7);

3. For the subsequent measurement of assets and liabilities:

The financial assets and financial liabilities resulting from operating activities should be measured at fair value; 

4. In the determination of the recoverable amount of assets:
This is the impairment testing. The impairment principle deals with assets. It is the basis for any write down of inventories to net realizable value and recognition of expected losses on construction and other service contract. The fair value is important in applying the impairment principle to property, plant and equipment and intangible assets because an entity can recover such assets by selling them. 

2.1.3
IFRS and German GAAP

There are some prior studies about the differences between the IFRS and German GAAP. According to Schiebel (2006) the financial reporting based on German GAAP favors creditor protection over investor orientation. That means German GAAP pays less attention to future cash flows than IFRS. Schiebel (2006) concludes also in his study that the German GAAP determines the maximum amount of dividends payable per business year.  The dividends also provides as the base for the computation of income taxes for companies (Schiebel 2006, 2-3). 

According to Schiebel (2006) the typical socio-economic environment of German limited companies under German GAAP is reputedly quite different from the typical IFRS one. The table below shows some differences in generally: 

	IFRS
	German GAAP

	Form and elements of financial statements
	Form and elements of financial statements

	The following must be presented:

· a statement of recognized gains and losses or a statement of changes in equity, which incorporates recognized gains and losses;

· statement of cash flows; and

· Notes to the financial statements, including accounting policies.
	A statement of cash flows and a statement of changes in equity (from 2003) are required only for listed companies.

The exemptions from preparing consolidated financial statements are more extensive than under IFRS.

	
	

	Statement of recognized gains and losses
	Statement of recognized gains and losses

	The statement of recognized gains and losses cannot be combined with the income statement.
	There is no requirement to present a statement of recognized gains and losses.

	
	

	Statement of cash flows
	Statement of cash flows

	· IFRS requires a number of disclosures, but does not prescribe the exact line items in the statement;

· Interest and dividends may be classified as operating or as investing (if received) or financing (if paid). Taxes usually are classified as operating; and

· Cash flows from extraordinary items are classified as operating, investing or financing as appropriate.
	· A specific format of the statement of cash flows is required;

· Cash flows from interest received and paid, dividends received and income taxes generally are classified as cash flows from operating activities; and

· Cash flows from extraordinary items are classified as operating, investing or financing.

	
	

	
	

	Basis of accounting
	Basis of accounting

	Many items in the financial statements are revalued, on either an optional or compulsory basis.
	Financial statements are prepared on a historical cost basis.

	
	

	Financial instruments, including hedging
	Financial instruments, including hedging

	Split accounting of compound instruments is required where there are both liability and equity characteristics.
	The recognition of financial assets and liabilities is influenced significantly by the legal structure of the transaction, and more instruments are classified as equity than under IFRS

	
	

	Equity
	Equity

	· There are no capital maintenance rules;

· Some shares must be classified as liabilities;

· Equity issue costs are recognized directly in equity; and

· Treasury shares are deducted from equity and no gain or loss is recognized in the income statement from trading in own shares.
	· There are specific capital maintenance rules for stock corporations and other enterprises with limited liability;

· There are certain forms of financing that are regarded as equity although repayment is expected after a long period of time;

· Equity issue costs are recognized in the income statement as incurred; and

· Treasury stock held for reissue is presented as a current asset; any gain/loss on reissue is recognized in profit and loss.


2.1.4 The economic consequences through the introduction of IFRS

Changes in the accounting standard will present the economic consequences. Researchers examined the economic consequences through the introduction of IFRS in different studies.  The introduction of IFRS leads to various economic consequences. Below are the four major aspects where the economic consequences are given through the introduction of IFRS. The emphasis in this thesis lies on aspect number four. The four major aspects are:

Change of pension plans

The management of companies state that the introduction of IFRS is the main reason for transforming the pension scheme (Swinkels 2006, 2). Several Dutch stock exchange listed companies have changed their pension schemes from the traditional defined-benefit toward defined contribution schemes. Swinkels (2006, 2) conclusion is that 

“companies with a relative large pension fund as measured by asset value relative to company market value are the first ones to reduce pension risk by changing their pension scheme from a defined-benefit to a defined-contribution”;

Influence at the stock prices

Several studies exist about the consequences of the introduction of IFRS for the stock prices. Jong et al. (2006) has investigated the impact of IAS 32 on the Preference Shares in the Netherlands. The conclusion of Jong et al. was:

“We document that for Dutch firms with preferred stock outstanding, the reclassification will on average increase the reported debt ratio by 35%. We find that 71% of the firms that are affected by IAS 32 buy back their preference shares or alter the specifications of the preference shares in such a way that the classification as equity can be maintained”;

Change in degree of earnings management 
Many authors expected a reduction in the application of earnings management after the introduction of IFRS. The question to answer is if the introduction of IFRS has led in practice to a reduction of earnings management. A few studies exist about this subject. An example is the study of Heemskerk and Van der Tas (2006). The authors examined whether the use of IFRS has led to a reduction of earnings management. Heemskerk and Van der Tas conclude that the use IFRS has led to a decrease of earnings management. Tendeloo and Vanstraelen (2005) performed a second study about earnings management.

Influence on cost of capital 

The introduction of IFRS can also affect the cost of capital. Literature studies exist with different outcomes. Some of the findings establish that the use of IFRS leads to a lower cost of equity capital (Lee et al. 2006, Lee et al. 2008, and Li 2008). In contrast to the literature of Daske et al. (2008), they present evidence that German firms have a higher cost of equity capital by implementation of IFRS than firms that uses local GAAP. Furthermore, Leuz and Verrecchia (2000) could not establish a clear conclusion concerning the cost of equity capital.

2.2 
Cost of equity capital

As mentioned before, the focus lies on the influence by using of IFRS and the economic consequences of using the IFRS. The existing studies about the relation between IFRS and cost of equity capital can be divided according Lee et al. (2008) into two general categories:

· The first group consists of the studies of Cuijpers and Buijink 2005; Daske 2006; Leuz 2003; and Leuz and Verrecchia 2000. This group analyzed voluntary adaptors. Their results are usually confounded with the effect of incentives. Companies switched from lower-quality local GAAP to higher-quality IFRS, even before IFRS was mandatory. The intention of these companies was to acquire external equity capital by higher quality disclosure;

· The second group consists of more recent studies of Christensen et al. 2008; Daske et al. 2008. This group is based on mandatory adopting of IFRS. The study Christensen et al. (2008) show in a German sample that accounting quality improvements following IFRS adoption occur mainly among voluntary adaptors and not their mandated counterparts.  

The study of Dakse et al. (2008) show that the IFRS impact had on companies who domiciled in countries where the institutional environment leads to higher financial reporting incentives and enforcement”

2.2.1 
Cost of capital

The cost of capital is the return that the firm must pay to investors for bearing the risk they perceive of the company’s operating flows (Lee et al. 2006, 9).  According Hail and Leuz (2007, 8-9) the expectation was that the adoption of IFRS will lead to a reduction of the cost of capital. The idea behind this expectation was that IFRS improves the disclosures, which makes the markets for investors more transparency. In this way the information asymmetry will reduce. This translates to a lower cost of capital.  

The cost of capital is an important risk measurement for the investment and financial decisions of professional investors and corporate financial managers. Cost of capital is the amount which a company must pay to obtain adequate funds. Cost of capital consists of the sum of:
· Costs of debt; the interest rate on borrowing is the overall cost of debt to the borrower. This interest rate can be divided into two components. One component risk-free rate and the other component is risk premium, which compensates for liquidity and default risk (Lee et al. 2006, 16). An example of cost of debt is the interest rate of bank loans 

· Costs of equity; according to Botosan (2006, 31-32) “the cost of equity capital is the minimum rate of return equity investors require for providing capital to the firm”. Botosan defines cost of equity capital as the 'expected' cost of equity capital because it is a forward-looking concept. This forward-looking concept is not directly observable in the market place. An example of cost of equity is the payment of dividend and capital gains.  

The research of this paper will focus on the cost of equity capital. The cost of debt is not associated with a high capital risk premium because all conditions are registered in contracts. A condition is for instance the rate of return that is determined for a long period (like contracts of 5 years). The cost of equity capital fluctuated “daily”. Because of this fluctuation there arise risks
 for firms and that’s the reason why firms focus more on the cost of equity capital then cost of debt. 

The introduction of IFRS has influence on the cost of capital. This influences effects the cost of equity more in contrary to the cost of debt.  The reasons are for instance; that the return of cost of debt is fixed in contracts and the returns of cost of equity depends on the risks that shareholders perceive. For that reason companies concentrate more on the cost of equity capital then cost of debt. Companies were capable to influence the cost of equity capital, and the changes of accounting standards could also contribute the influence of the cost of equity capital. Considering these points signaled above the focus of the research relies on the cost of equity capital. 

2.2.2  
Relation between introduction IFRS and cost of capital

In the existing literature, there are various studies with the conclusion that a relation exist between the introduction of IFRS and cost of capital. The Netherlands Authority for the Financial Markets (Autoriteit Financiële Markten, AFM), and researchers Leuz (University of Chicago) and Hail (The Wharton School), have shown that the introduction of IFRS in the European Union led to reduced cost of capital for listed companies and to a more liquid European capital market. 

According to Hail and Leuz (2007) there are several reasons why IFRS can lead to a lower average cost of capital and more liquidity in markets: 
· IFRS reporting provides investors a better understanding of the financial performance and position of companies; 

· The costs of comparing companies are lower for investors, especially when comparing companies in different countries;  and 

· IFRS obliges companies to supply more information on the financial consequences of their policies, which is expected to cause companies to make management decisions made with greater consideration for investors. 

2.3 
Summary 

This chapter provides a theoretical background about the subjects that are important in this document. The subject IFRS and cost of equity capital is commented in details. The main focus in this research lies on the cost f equity capital especially, if there is any reduction in cost of equity capital by introducing the IFRS.  The economic consequences are in detailed commented. There is also mentioned about the relation between IFRS and cost of equity capital. According to Hail and Leuz the IFRS had led to a reduced cost of equity capital. This chapter describes that there are economic consequences through the introduction of IFRS; including the cost of equity capital is influenced by the introduction of IFRS. 

Chapter 3
Models for computing cost of equity capital

There are various models described in existing literature about the evolution of equity capital costs before, during and after the implementation of IFRS. Various models to determine the cost of equity capital are listed below. These were used to determine the cost of equity capital. There is no ‘wonder model’ that perfectly fulfils all the criteria for estimating of cost of equity capital. 
3.1
Motivation for chosen cost of equity capital model for research

For this thesis, the PEG model is selected to determine the cost of equity capital. Besides the describing of the various models, the choice for the PEG model is also outlined.
First, Penman (2004) suggests that a good equity valuation model should have observable parameters and should consist of limited assumptions. Considering the suggestion of Penman (2004), the CAPM model and AEG model are the most complicated models in contrary to the PEG model. The conclusion is that the CAPM model and AEG model are more complicated then PEG model and the CAPM model and AEG model impose more assumptions to be implemented in the model. Second, the preference is not to repeat models used in the existing studies with a similar focus. A study with the same focus was done by Daske (2006). Daske (2006) used the AEG and the Residual Income Valuation (RIV) model to determine the cost of equity capital. Evaluating the two points; the PEG will be the best model for this research because the PEG model needs less assumption and according to Easton the PEG model would also be accurate for computing the cost of equity capital. The Peg model has the best association with commonly accepted proxies.  

3.2
The several models for computing the COEC

In this section the several models like CAPM, AEG, PEG, and the RIV model will be discussed. The assumption, underlying ideas of each models and why the prior literature used these models will also be outline in the following paragraphs. 
3.1.1
Capital Asset Pricing Model (CAPM)
The CAPM model was developed through William Sharpe (1964) and John Lintner
(1965). This model presents predictions about in which way to measure the risk and the relation between risk and expected return. The model is applicable to estimate the cost of equity capital for firms or evaluating the performance of managed portfolios.

According to Fama and French (2004, 5-7) the idea behind CAPM is that investors need to be compensated in two ways: time value of money and risk. The time value of money is represented by the risk-free (rf) rate in the formula (see figure 1.1) and compensates the investors for their investment in a period of time. The other half of the formula represents risk and calculates the amount of compensation the investor needs for taking on additional risk. This is calculated by taking a risk measure (beta) that compares the returns of the asset to the market over a period of time and to the market premium (Rm-rf). Figure 1.1 discusses the CAPM model. 

The CAPM formula (Fama and French 2004, 6).
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 . The market beta is calculated by return of the market minus the risk free interest rate.                                        

Empirical evidence demonstrates, however, the CAPM does not explain expected returns well (Fama and French 1992). The search for other variants of factor-based asset pricing models to replace CAPM (e.g. Fama and French 1996) has yielded limited success. The problems include model specification, error in factor loading estimation, and imprecise estimates of factor risk premiums. We will not describe further because this will not be relevant for the paper. 

According to Fama and French (2004, 2-3) the CAPM model has two key assumptions. “The first assumption is complete agreement: given market clearing asset prices at t-1, investors agree on the joint distribution of asset returns from t-1 to t. And this distribution is the true one, that is, the distribution from which the returns we use to test the model are drawn. The second assumption is that there is borrowing and lending at a risk free rate, which is the same for all investors and does not depend on the amount borrowed or lent”.

Other assumptions of the CAPM model are (Fama and French 2004, 5-8):

· All investors are rational risk-averse, they care only about the outcome and variance of their one-period investment return;

· All investors trade without transaction or taxation costs;

· Assume that all information is at the same time available to all investors.

3.1.2
Abnormal earnings growth model (AEG)

The abnormal earnings growth (AEG) model is developed by Ohlson and Juettner-Nauroth (2005). The AEG model focuses on future earnings and earnings growth. According to Ohlson and Juettner-Nauroth (2005, 350) the core of the model shows in which way the current price depends on forward EPS and the growth. The AEG model is used for determine the cost of equity capital.  Figure 1.2 shows the AEG model.

AEG Formula (Lee et al. 2008, 14)
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Calculate A (Lee et al. 2008, 14)
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Where:
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The AEG model has different assumptions. The assumptions are listed here below (according Lee et al. 2006; Lee et al. 2008):

· Assuming a common economy-wide growth for all companies in the long term;

· The AEG model require the [image: image18.png]eps, .,
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to be positive;
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. Otherwise, an error will obtain. The requirement is here that the [image: image22.png]eps, .,
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. Otherwise, a negative value will result. After dividing the negative value by the price (what has always a positive value), the square root of a negative value will be obtain and that is not possible.

The AEG model is used in the research of Bevers (2009) to determine the cost of equity capital. The calculated cost of equity capital through with the AEG model is used as dependent variable in his regression. More will be explained in Chapter 5, paragraph 5.1.

3.1.3
Price-earnings growth model (PEG)

The PEG model is a special model of the AEG model of Ohlson and Juettner-Nauroth (2005). Easton (2004) suggests two assumptions to the AEG model, AEG model is signaled above. The first assumption is that dpst+1 = 0 and the second assumption is that γ = 1. In this way there is no abnormal earnings growth beyond the forecast horizon. Easton suggests that the cost of equity capital of a company can therefore be inferred from the PEG model as shown in figure 1.3.
The PEG model calculates a ratio, which is equal to the PE ratio divided by the expected short term earnings growth rate (that is, (eps2 - eps1)/eps1). The PEG ratio is a valuation measure for determining the relative trade-off between the price of a stock, the earnings generated per share (EPS), and the company's expected growth. The key element of the model is the central role of short-term forecasts of earnings valuation (Easton 2004).

The PEG model uses the earnings per share for one year ahead, earnings per share for two years ahead and the current stock price, to calculate the ratio. This is a simpler model of AEG model, whereby the dpst+1 is excluded. The dpst+1 are excluded because, as signaled earlier, the assumption of Easton was that dpst+1 = 0. The variable has no influence on the formula when it’s 0, so the variable will be excluded from the formula. A high (above 1) PEG ratio means a low expected rate of return, however a low (under 1) PEG ratio means a high expected rate of return. Figure 1.3 shows the PEG model.

PEG Model (Lee et al. 2008):
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is the current share price at year-end

The PEG formula described in words, the cost of equity capital is the extract the root of earnings per share for two year ahead minus Earnings per Share for one year ahead, this must be divided with the current share price at year-end.  

The PEG model has different assumptions, the assumptions are listed here below (according Lee et al. 2006; Lee et al. 2008): 
· The assumption is that earnings growth will not change beyond the (short) earnings forecast horizon. There will be a constant  growth of the earnings;

· The PEG model require the [image: image29.png]eps, .,



 and [image: image30.png](eps,.»



to be positive;
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. Otherwise, an error will obtain. The requirement is here that the [image: image33.png]eps, .,
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. Otherwise, a negative value will result. After dividing the negative value by the price (what has always a positive value), the square root of a negative value will be obtain and that is not possible.

These assumptions may bias the sample towards more stable companies and companies with less risk. However there is no reason to say that these assumptions could materially affect our cost of equity capital comparisons (Lee et al. 2008). 

3.1.4 
Residual Income Valuation (RIV)

The RIV model is a model of Gebhardt, Lee and Swaminathan. The assumption of the RIV model is that when there is use of value stocks, the RIV model separates value as the sum of two component: (1) the current book value of equity, and (2) the present value of expected future residual income {( sum from time t = 1 to infinity (RI/(1 + r) ^ t )}.
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= capital value of owners’ equity, determined ex dividend and 


including any new issue of share capital at time t = 0
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= expected total dividend paid to the shareholders of the company, where t denotes time of 
payment
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= expected new issue of share capital to the company, where t denotes time of payment
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= required rate of return on owners’ equity (= cost of equity capital) 

Above, the normal RIV model is given without any proxies and assumption. Each researcher who applies this model uses different proxies and assumptions. The assumption was not signaled in any literature that’s why the assumptions are not signaled in this paragraph. Daske (2006) uses the RIV model with the following assumption as long-term Growth and assumption to earn constant rent in continuity (Daske, 2006)

3.3
Summary

In this chapter the several models are described. The differences in this model are that prior research proves that the PEG model is the best model to calculate the cost of equity capital. Because the PEG model has less assumption and because of this less assumption the cost of equity capital is easy to calculate. Daske (2006) used the AEG and the RIV model. Daske (2006) had to make many assumptions to compute the cost of equity capital. He also computed the return on equity with this RIV model. There is no wonder model to compute the cost of equity capital. But the PEG model is the best model that calculates the cost of equity capital accurately.
Chapter 4
Literature review  

The literature review describes the early evidence on the effect of cost of equity capital by using the IFRS. The first paragraph will outlined the studies that give an increase concerning the cost of equity capital. The second paragraph outlined the studies which have a decrease as result on the cost of equity capital by using of the IFRS. The third paragraph outlined the studies with unclear outcomes concerning the effect on the cost of equity capital. A summary of the commented studies will be presented in the last paragraph, ‘overview of literature’. The parts of prior researches where outlined in this chapter which is important for the research. Therefore some parts of the researches are summarized or not signaled. 
4.1
The evidence of increase in cost of equity capital 
In this paragraph the study of Daske (2006) will be described. Daske (2006) proved in contrary to other studies the increase of cost of equity capital by using the IFRS.

Daske (2006) did a research on European Countries. The research period was from 1993 to 2002. The main purpose of Daske’s (2006) research was to estimate the economic consequences by adopting the IFRS. Daske (2006) used a set of non-financial German firms to that have adopted such standard and investigated the economic benefits. Daske (2006) did this investigation by analysing their cost of equity capital through the use of available implied estimation methods.

The emphasis of Daske's (2006) research lies on the decreasing of the expected cost of equity. The sample that Daske (2006) used for his research was approximately 4,500 IAS/IFRS and 3,000 US-GAAP firm-month observations in Germany. Conform to Daske (2006); he failed to document a lower expected cost of equity capital for firms that pre-adopt financial reporting under international standards. This result holds equally for IAS/IFRS and for US-GAAP adopters (Daske 2006).  

The models that Daske (2006) used for calculating the expected cost of equity capital is the Residual Income Valuation (RIV) and the AEG model. Daske considered the RIV and the AEG model as the “state- of- the-art” estimation model. Daske (2006) concludes based on his research that there is a higher cost of equity capital by using IFRS in Germany. Daske (2006) only came with evidence that there is an increase in the cost of equity capital by using the IAS/IFRS. To determine the increase in the cost of equity capital Daske’s underlying idea was to use a corporate valuation model to generate a market implied cost of equity capital. The implied cost of equity capital is defined as the internal rate of return that equates the current stock price to the present value of markets expected residual flows. In which way Daske (2006) exactly calculated the cost of equity capital with the RIV and AEG model will be explained in chapter 5.

Furthermore, Daske extend the “literature by directly estimating the expected cost of equity capital effects through the application of recent advances in accounting and finance” (Daske 2006, 330). According to Daske these method determine the cost of equity capital as an implied rate of return of a valuation model.

The conclusion of Daske (2006) was that he investigated the common claim that financial reporting under internationally recognized standards lowers the cost of equity capital of adopting firms. Daske (2006) used a set of German firms that pre-adopted compulsory IAS/IFRS introduction across the EU by 2005/2007. Daske applied different empirical tests for these firms and he didn’t find supporting empirical evidence for such a speculation. In fact, the overall results would rather suggest higher cost of equity capital for firms reporting under the IFRS in Germany (Daske 2006). Daske (2006) also signalled clearly in his investigation that he failed to document a lower expected cost of equity capital for firms that pre-adopted financial reporting under international standards. According to Daske (2006), hold this result equally for IAS/IFRS and US-GAAP adopters.

4.2
The evidence of decrease in cost of equity capital 

The research of Lee et al. (2006), Lee et al. (2008), Li (2008) and Bevers (2009) presents evidence of a decrease in the cost of equity capital. The following section gives an overall overview of the four studies that presents evidence concerning decrease in cost of equity capital. After this section the four studies will be related with each other. 

Lee et al. (2006) described in their research the concept of the cost of capital as “an essential risk metric for the investment and financial decisions of professional investors and corporate financial managers” (Lee et al. 2006, 5). The main purpose of the research report of Lee et al. (2006) was to study the properties of one particular technology for determining the costs of capital and changes in the costs of capital, over time (Lee et al. 2006). After doing this research Lee et al. continued their research in 2008. However by that time the aim of the research of Lee et al (2008) was to analyze the impact on the cost of equity capital in Europe since the mandatory IFRS adoption in 2005. The assumption that Lee et al. (2008) made behind this aim was that the “cost of equity capital is important to corporate finance and investment decisions” (Lee et al 2008, 7).  Almost all of the IAS standards are included in the IFRS. The standards were modified if that was required. The research of Li (2008) concerned about the cost of equity capital. The purpose of Li’s (2008) research report is to explore the effects of mandatory IAS adoption on the cost of equity capital. Furthermore, there was a recent research in 2009 by Bevers in the Netherlands. The aim of this research is to examine if the mandatory switching from Dutch GAAP to IFRS has led to a decrease in the cost of equity capital. The focus of Bevers (2009) research was specific on a group in one country, namely the Dutch listed companies.  

The research of Lee et al. (2006) presents the analyses of the cost of capital that compares UK companies with their counterpart in the rest of Europe. Lee et al. (2006) used a model in their research that evaluates the capital cost before, during and after the implementation of the IFRS. The assumption of Lee et al. (2006) was based on analysts ’expectation
. This research of Lee et al. (2006) was based on the overall effect on the cost of capital. This includes also the cost of equity capital. In contrary to Lee et al (2008), is this research was only based on the effect of cost of equity capital. Before starting the research, Lee et al. (2006) gives a small explanation about the models which they use for estimating the cost of equity capital. They signalled about the PEG (price-earnings growth), AEG (abnormal-earnings growth) and the RIV (residual income valuation) model. The PEG model is according to Lee et al. (2006) an economical version of the AEG model and it has been shown to have the best association with commonly accepted proxies. The AEG model is more suited to the European context than the RIV model because it does not depend on the clean surplus assumption. The methodology that Lee et al. (2006) used in their study was an implied cost of equity capital estimation technology. The implied cost of equity capital is based on the PEG model as described by Easton (2004). They also calculated WACC
  to focus on the overall cost of capital.

However when Lee et al. continued their research in 2008, they indicate to investigate the changes in the cost of equity capital through mandatory adoption of IFRS in Europe.  Lee et al. (2008) used the AEG and the PEG model to determine the changes. Lee et al. (2006) and Lee et al. (2008) did their research across Europe; however the emphasis lies on UK. Between the European countries there are several country specific characteristic. In contrary with Lee et al. (2006), Lee et al. (2008) classified 17 European countries based on five key institutional characteristic indicators that occur in the 17 European countries:

· Outsiders rights

· The importance of the equity market

· Ownership concentration

· Disclosure quality, and

· Earnings management (Lee et al. 2008)

As signalled in the overview section of the four studies Li (2008) did also a research about the effects of cost of equity capital. Before Li started her research she already had the following assumption that there are “at least two reasons why mandatory adoption may be expected to reduce the cost of equity capital” (Li 2008, 1). 

The first reason according to Li (2008) is that “prior research finds that IAS requires greater financial disclosure than most local accounting standards and that increased disclosure reduces the cost of equity capital”; 
The second reason is that “prior research argues that one set of uniform accounting standards is likely to improve information comparability across firms, which is also expected to reduce the cost of equity capital” ( Li 2008, 1). 

The research design of Li was as follows; Li (2008) explores the impact of mandatory IAS adoption on the cost of equity capital. The regression model of Li (2008) about the cost of equity capital consist dummy variables. The first dummy variable will be indicating the type of adopter (mandatory versus voluntary adopters). The second dummy variable indicates the time period (pre versus post-mandatory adoption period), the interaction between these variables and set of control variables
. According to Li, the research design allows her to investigate the change in the cost of equity in the pre- versus post-mandatory adoption period. Furthermore, Li used the ex ante cost of equity implied in current stock prices and analysts’ forecasts of future earnings (Li 2008).

Lee et al. (2006) and Lee et al. (2008), in those researches Lee et al. tried to calculate the cost of equity capital by using the PEG and AEG models. In contrary to Li (2008), she used a measure that relies on four estimation models. The four models
 are (1) the industry ROE model proposed by Gebhardt et al. (2001), (2) the economic-wide growth model in Claus and Thomas (2001), (3) the unrestricted abnormal earnings growth model in Gode and Mohanram (2003) and (4) the restricted abnormal earnings growth model in Easton (2004) (Li 2008, 11).  Li signalled also in their research that because of a “substantial measurement error and potential bias in implied cost of capital (Easton and Monahan 2005)”, she use “the mean of these four measures as the proxy for the cost of equity capital (Hail and Leuz 2006; Daske et al. 2007)” (Li 2008, 14). These four measures is utilised in the regression model to determine the relation between the IAS and the cost of equity capital. Another interesting research is the research of Bevers. Recently, when Bevers (2009) did his research in the Netherlands the cost of equity capital has been stipulated by means of the AEG model of Ohlson and Juettner-Nauroth (2005). After calculating the cost of equity capital, this has been used as a dependent variable in the regression analysis. IFRS is used as an independent variable in the regression model. The IFRS variable is a dummy variable. The followed part of this paragraph presents the relationship between Lee et al. (2006), Lee et al (2008), Li (2008) and Bevers (2009) concerning the cost of equity capital.
After doing the research on the prior literature the conclusion can be made that Lee et al. (2006), Lee et al. (2008), Li (2008) and Bevers (2009) find evidence that there is a reduction in the cost of equity capital. These outcomes are based on some assumption. 

Lee et al. (2006) concluded through their research that “existing UK-GAAP has been widely recognized to require higher disclosure quality and to be closer to IFRS than the accounting standard of most other European countries” (Lee et al. 2006, 11). Lee et al. (2006) indicates also that companies in the UK depends relatively more on equity-based financing. Lee et al. (2006, 11) assumed that “if information disclosure quality affects the cost of equity capital, then we should observe systematically lower cost of equity capital among UK companies”. 
Against this background, Lee et al. (2006) expected that the adoption of IFRS will reduce the cost of equity capital for companies in the rest of Europe and, at least, reduce the gap with those in the UK in the long run. The two key findings that can be analyze from the research of Lee et al. (2006): the first one was that “the cost of equity capital minus the risk free rate of interest is systematically lower in the UK than the rest of Europe”. According to Lee et al. (2006) the first key finding will confirm that the higher disclosure requirement and general dominance of equity-based finance in the UK leads to systematically lower cost of equity capital. 
The second key finding was “If the IFRS adoption will improve the disclosure quality and equity investor’s interest in companies in the rest of Europe, studies should observe a reduction in the gap between cost of equity capital for UK companies and that for European companies”. Lee et al. (2006) assume in his research that if the rest of Europe can achieve this reduction in cost of equity capital, while at the same time maintaining it’s relatively low cost of debt capital, then the UK could find that its companies have relatively high cost of capital.
When the researches are compared, Lee et al. (2006) and Lee et al. (2008), then the conclusion is that by that time Lee et al. (2008) substantiated in depth their assumption made in 2006. This, because Lee et al. (2008) signalled that “cost of equity capital is important to corporate finance and investment”. Lee et al. (2008) determined on based of their research that the decisions and proponents of IFRS predict that companies will gain benefits from the reduction in cost of equity capital, following the adoption of IFRS (Lee et al. 2008). Furthermore Lee et al. (2008) assumed that the cost of equity can be reduced through two ways; (1) the “international comparability of financial statements” should following the use the common language. This will be attracting for foreign investors to invest their capital in several countries. And there will be a reduction in barriers to cross-border capital flows, (2) “Corporate disclosure” should be improved when higher-quality accounting standards replace lower-quality domestic GAAP. This could be possible for outside investors to monitor managerial performance better because information asymmetry is reduced. In contrary with Lee et al. (2008), Li (2008) signalled also that there will be two channels that reduce the cost of equity capital; (1) increased disclosure and (2) enhanced comparability. The two reasons that Lee et al. (2008) and Li (2008) signalled in their assumption differ from each other because Lee et al. examine the effects on the cost of equity capital by using the IFRS and Li examine the effects on the cost of equity capital by using the IAS. Li (2008) determined in their research through the analysis that voluntary adopters, do not experience any significant change in the cost of equity capital after the mandatory introduction of IAS in 2005. Thereafter, Li (2008) concludes also that the reduction in the cost of equity capital for mandatory adopters is significant only in countries with strong legal enforcement mechanism. 

Furthermore, in comparison with Bevers research with prior researches, he concludes that mandatory of IFRS in the Netherlands leads to a reduction in the cost of equity capital. In contrary to Li, Bevers (2009) wanted to determine the relation between IFRS and the cost of equity capital by the regression model
.Moreover the result has also a social impact. Until now there are some critics on IFRS. This criticism will possibly become less in the Netherlands because the research of Bevers (2009) indicates that not only the disadvantages to IFRS are linked. From the results of the regression analysis becomes clear that the cost of equity capital of listed Dutch firms have decreased by using IFRS. This descent of the cost of equity capital can be considered as a large advantage of IFRS (Bevers 2009). The method what Li (2008) and Bevers (2009) had used are quite similar. Bevers (2009) specifically did his research for mandatory adoption of IFRS while Li (2008) did her research on mandatory and voluntary adoption of IFRS. Despite of the researches on mandatory and voluntary adoption of IFRS, Li (2008) and Bevers (2009) has the same outcomes, namely decrease of cost of equity capital. 

4.3
 The mixed outcomes concerning the cost of equity capital 
In this paragraph the several studies will be described that has a mixed outcome concerning the cost of equity capital.

Daske et al. did a research in 2007 and 2008. The research of 2007 was based on the heterogeneity in the economic consequences of IFRS adoption. The main purpose of Daske et al. (2007) was to explain this heterogeneity in part by differences in firms’ reporting incentives and by the extent to which firms make substantial changes to their reporting and disclosure policies. Daske et al. (2007) only used the cost of equity capital as a dependent variable. Their empirical literature brings no added value to this research. Therefore this point is not commented in details. 

In contrary, Daske et al. (2008) analyzed effects in stock market liquidity, cost of equity capital, equity valuations and firm value. Daske et al. (2008) used the firm-year from 2001 to 2005. They provide in their research early evidence on the capital-market effects around the introduction of mandatory IFRS reporting in 26 countries around the world. The sample for this research was over 3,100 firms that are mandated to adopt IFRS. Daske et al. (2008) signaled in their research that the market-based construct should reflect changes in the quality of financial reporting and it should also reflect improvements around the IFRS mandate (Daske et al. 2008). Therefore they employed four proxies for market liquidity, those are ; the proportion of zero returns, the price impact of trades, total trading costs, and bid–ask spreads. Thereafter Daske et al. (2008, 2) used four methods
 to compute the implied cost of equity capital, and used Tobin’s q
 as a proxy for firms’ equity valuations.

The research of Hail and Leuz (2007) was based on the empirical analyses of the concurrent research study by Daske et al. (2007). According to Hail and Leuz (2007) their empirical analyses assesses the capital-market effects of IFRS adoption based also on four proxies that are commonly used in academic research. The four proxies that Hail and Leuz (2007) employed was “the implied cost of equity capital, the percentage bid-ask spread, the price impact of trades and the frequency of zero return days” (Hail and Leuz 2007, 5).  The sample that is used by Hail and Leuz (2007) to do their research was for 5,683 EU firms over the period 2001 to 2005 (Hail and Leuz, 2007). 

Compared with Daske et al. (2008), Hail and Leuz (2007) used almost the same kind of proxies. The differences in proxies of those two researches are that Daske et al. (2008) used total trading costs. Furthermore Daske et al. (2008) used four methods to compute the implied cost of equity capital and as a proxy for firms’ equity valuation they used the Tobin’q. Hail and Leuz didn’t use the total trading costs. The research of Hail and Leuz (2007) indicates that they can use firms from other countries as well as EU firms that have not yet adopted IFRS in 2005
 as a benchmark. 

Daske et al. (2008) and Hail and Leuz (2007) did their research in EU. They used almost the same proxy but different samples. Daske et al. (2008) described in their research that the empirical tests and the cross-sectional analyses showed that the capital-market effects around the introduction of mandatory IFRS reporting are not equally distributed across countries and firms. Daske et al. (2008) mentioned “that the capital-markets effects around mandatory IFRS adoption occur only in countries with relatively strict enforcement regimes and in countries where the institutional environment provides strong incentives to firms to be transparent” (Daske et al. 2008, 5). 

Hail and Leuz (2007) present, for the mandatory IFRS period, some evidence that the cost of equity capital is lower for al firm reporting under IFRS and for those that adopted IFRS for the first time in 2005 (relative to non IFRS firms). Furthermore, Hail and Leuz (2007) signalled in their research paper that they will focus on the effects in EU capital markets, cost of equity capital and liquidity of the equity markets. This because prior academic research has established links between corporate disclosure and both of these constructs (Hail and Leuz 2007, 8). After the comparison between the research of Daske et al. (2008) and Hail and Leuz (2007), the conclusion can determine that these researches were based on a general research concerning the early evidence on the economic consequences. Daske et al. (2008) concluded that mandatory adopters experienced statistically significant increases in market liquidity after IFRS reporting becomes mandatory. Consistent with the liquidity improvements, the authors also present a decrease in firms’ cost of capital and a corresponding increase in Tobin’s q. (Daske et al. 2008, 48). Contrary to Hail and Leuz (2007), they came to the conclusion that the “the empirical analysis provides a mixed picture for the capital-market effects of mandatory IFRS reporting in the EU” (Hail and Leuz 2007, 46). The “mixed picture” of Hail and Leuz (2007) was based on following; (1) there was a lack of unaffected firms, which Hail and Leuz (2007) could use as a benchmark, (2) effects on the existence of transition or a increase in suspicion, because market participants are not familiar with the new rules ( Hail and Leuz, 2007).

Hail and Leuz (2007) signalled in their report that their “descriptive analyses do not indicate major structural breaks or changes in the capital-market variables” (Hail and Leuz 2007, 47).  According to Hail and Leuz (2007) the findings that are presented in their report should be viewed as a first indication of the capital-markets effects around IFRS adoption in the EU.  Generally, Daske et al. (2008) and Hail and Leuz (2007) they did their research across the EU where IFRS is mandatory. 

A research of Leuz and Verrecchia (2000) that is based only on Germany have some other assumption comparing with the research of Daske et al. (2008) and Hail and Leuz (2007). Because the research of Leuz and Verrecchia (2000) based their research only on Germany, it is not so easy to relate the research of Leuz and Verrecchia (2000) with the research of Hail and Luez (2007) and Daske et al. (2008). 

According to Leuz and Verrecchia (2000), the German accounting standards and disclosure practices are commonly criticized in the Anglo-American financial press and investors’ community. The main complaints are: 

· Too much discretion in German standards allows firms to manage income using large “silent reserves”; 

· German reporting is too heavily influenced by tax avoidance strategies; 

· And German standards lack detailed disclosures designed to satisfy the information needs of investors and financial analysts (Leuz and Verrecchia 2000).

German managers had difficulty “explaining” their (German GAAP) financial results to foreign investors. The German managers also claimed that a lack of international acceptance of German financial statements has led to disadvantages when raising capital. In response to these problems, many German firms have changed their reporting and disclosure policy. As a Deutsche Bank’s spokesman, put it: “We are doing this (adopting IAS standards) to prevent investors from turning away from Deutsche Bank because they think they are not getting enough information” (Leuz and Verrecchia 2000, 8). Pellens and Tomaszewski survey managers of DAX
 100 firms reported that almost 50 percent of the respondents believe that a switch to IAS or US-GAAP translates into a reduction in the firm’s cost of capital due increased disclosure (Leuz and Verrecchia 2000). 
Leuz and Verrecchia establishes in their research report that the German firms have adopted three strategies to be in conformity with international accounting and disclosure standards; (1)under so-called “dual reporting”
, (2) strategy is that firms follow German GAAP for their financial statements, but reconcile their income and shareholders’ equity with either IAS or US-GAAP. Additional disclosures required under IAS or US-GAAP are provided in the notes; (3) strategy is to provide separate financial statements and disclosures in accordance with IAS or US-GAAP in addition to the German statements (Leuz and Verrecchia 2000).

Leuz and Verrecchia did their research in Germany. Their cross-sectional sample comprises 102 firms included in the DAX 100 index during 1998. For these firms Leuz and Verrecchia have studied the annual reports to indentify the firms’ reporting strategy. They also conducted a survey to confirm their classification, to find out when firms have announced their switch, and to identify firms that have already declared to adopt IAS or US GAAP in the future (Leuz and Verrecchia 2000).

Leuz and Verrecchia (2000) signaled in their research that there were three major problems; (1) “ the firm’s cost of capital and in particular its information asymmetry component cannot be observed directly, (2) a commitment to more disclosure has both news and information asymmetry affect, which have to be separated, (3) Self selection bias” (Leuz and Verrecchia 2000, 12).

Their research design attempts to address each of these concerns. In their study, Leuz and Verrecchia (2000) choose the bid-ask spread, trading volume in firm shares and share price volatility as proxies for the information asymmetry component of the cost of equity capital. The outcomes of Leuz and Verrecchia based on their research report is that they studied a sample of German firms that have adopted IAS or US-GAAP accounting standards in their consolidated financial statements. According to Leuz and Verrecchia (2000), the international reporting strategy commits firms to substantially increased levels of disclosure, but has no immediate tax or dividend implications. Moreover, the disclosure levels in Germany under German GAAP have been characterized as being low. For these reasons, the experimental setting of their study particularly suited to document the economic consequences of increased disclosure. Furthermore, Leuz and Verrecchia (2000) leave this issue to future research (Leuz and Verrecchia 2000).

The last paragraph contains a summary of all those prior research that is used in the literature review. After this paragraph the methodology will be described in chapter 5. The follow paragraph commented the development of the hypotheses. 

4.4 
Developed Hypothesis
In this paragraph, the hypothesis will be commented. The purpose is to investigate whether the introduction of IFRS in 2005 causes a lower cost of equity capital for the DAX100 firms.

In the paragraphs before, various studies are commented that are related to the cost of equity capital. Not all the studies have all the same results. There are two main groups of results. The first group, the use of IFRS causes to a higher cost of equity capital for Germany (Dakse et al. 2008). The second group, the use of IFRS causes to a lower cost of equity capital (Lee et al. 2006, Lee et al. 2008, and Li 2008). 

The conclusions of all studies were that the introduction of IFRS has led to a lower cost of capital except the study of Daske et al. (2008). They conclude that a positive relation exist between the IFRS and cost of equity capital. Based on the outcomes of the literature studies (Lee et al. 2006, Lee et al. 2008, Li 2008, and Bevers 2009) the expectation is that the introduction leads to a lower cost of equity capital. This is based on the assumption that the introduction of IFRS the transparency and the comparability of the financial reports of European companies will increase. 

In this thesis is tried to refute the conclusion of Daske et al. (2008) through using a different research method. The conclusion can be different in comparison with Daske et al., because several factors can influences the conclusion. The expectation is, as signaled before, that the introduction of IFRS has led to a lower cost of equity capital. To realize a confirmation on this expectation in this thesis the following hypotheses will be tested. 

Hypothesis 1:

H0: The introduction of IFRS in Germany has no influence on cost of equity capital.  

H1: The introduction of IFRS in Germany has influence cost of equity capital.
Hypothesis 2:

H0: The introduction of IFRS in Germany led not to a lower cost of equity capital.  

H1: The introduction of IFRS in Germany led to a lower cost of equity capital.
4.5
 Summary of literature

This section will present an overview of the literature which commented in the literature review. The summary is made on the basis of the conclusions. 

	Effect
	Author(s)
	Object of the study
	Sample
	Methodology
	Outcome

	
	
	
	Size
	Country
	period
	
	

	Increase
	Daske (2006)
	The object of this study was to estimate the economic consequences by adopting the IFRS in Germany
	4,500 IAS/IFRS and 3,000 US-GAAP 
	Germany
	1993-2005
	Daske used the RIV and AEG model to calculate and estimate the cost of equity capital.
	Daske applied different empirical tests for the German firms and he did not found supporting empirical evidence for such a lower cost of equity capital. In fact, the overall results would rather suggest higher cost of equity capital for firms reporting under the IFRS in Germany.

	Decrease
	Lee, Walker and  Christensen (2006)
	Examine the properties of one particular technology for measuring the cost of capital, and changes in the cost of capital, over time.
	A large sample of companies from 17 European countries (including the UK) 
	UK
	1995 - 2005
	Gives an overview of different models, which are used to calculate and estimate the cost of capital.

Estimates that caused by the adopting of IFRS, differences exist between the UK and the rest of Europe.
	The cost of equity capital minus the risk-free rate interest is systematically lower in the UK than in the rest of Europe.

They commented evidence, which models make the changes in cost of equity capital for UK companies due to mandatory IFRS adoption.

	
	Lee, Walker and Christensen (2008)
	Analyze the impact of mandatory IFRS adoption on the cost of equity capital.  There is a comparison of changes in corporate cost of capital from before the enactment of IFRS until after this had been introduced.
	17 European Countries have been classifying with high or low financial reporting incentives and enforcement. 
	 
	1995 - 2006
	Evaluates the changes in the cost of equity capital following mandatory IFRS adoption in Europe, and they selected the PEG and AEG models for their purpose. 
	In contrast, in the country where all five institutional characteristic indicators are above the pan- European median, i.e. the UK, they observe a significant reduction in the cost of equity capital following the implementation of IFRS.

	
	Daske, Hail, Leuz, and Verdi (2008)
	The paper examines the economic consequences of mandatory use if the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) reporting in the world.
	3 of 3,100 firms have mandated to adopt IFRS.
	All countries where IFRS is mandatory
	2001 – 2005
	They combine variables into a regression model estimated at the firm-year level. 


	The authors conclude, on average, market liquidity increases around the time of the introduction of IFRS. They also document a decrease in firms ’cost of capital’ and an increase in equity valuations.

	
	Hail and Leuz,(2007)
	The paper examines the effects of mandatory IFRS reporting in the EU. 


	5,683 unique EU firms.
	Europe countries
	2001 – 2005


	The first measure derives an estimate of firms’ cost of capital from current market prices and analyst forecasts, the latter three measures are commonly used proxies for the liquidity of firms’ stocks.
	Empirical analysis provides a mixed picture for the capital-market effects of mandatory IFRS reporting in the EU. The descriptive analyses do not indicate major structural breaks or changes in the capital-market variables, suggesting that the effects of IFRS reporting are likely to be modest.

	Decrease
	Li 2008
	The object of this study is the examination whether the mandatory adoption of International Accounting Standards (IAS) in the European Union (EU) in 2005 reduces the cost of equity capital. 
	Sample size:

6,456 firm-year of 1,084 EU firms
	European countries
	1995-2006
	Li explores the impact of the mandatory IAS adoption on the cost of equity. Li used a regression model. Li tested the cost of equity capital on one variable indicating the type of adopter (mandatory versus voluntary adopters).
	Li find evidence that mandatory adopters, on average, experience a significant reduction in the cost of equity by 48 basis points after the mandatory introduction of IAS in 2005. Li identifies two channels through which mandatory IAS adoption reduces the cost of equity: increased disclosure and enhanced comparability.

	
	Bevers (2009)
	Consequences for the cost of capital through mandatory adoption of IFRS in the Netherland.
	Dutch Stock exchange quoted  companies
	The Netherlands
	2003 to 2006
	Bevers used the regression model of Easton (2004).  Because, in addition to the degree of disclosure (Dutch GAAP versus IFRS) more factors influences the cost of equity capital, some control variables has been taken.
	Bevers concludes that mandatory of IFRS in the Netherlands, there is a reduction in the cost of equity capital. Based on the results of the regression analysis becomes clear that the cost of equity capital of stock exchange quoted Dutch firms have decreased approximately 1.06% (106 base points) by the mandatory application of IFRS.

	No effect
	Leuz and Verrecchia (2000)
	The object of this study is the German firms that have switched from the German to an international reporting regime (IAS or US-GAAP, thereby committing themselves to increased levels of disclosures.
	102 firms included in the DAX 100 index during 1998.
	Germany 
	1990-1999
	A cross-sectional analysis on bid-ask spread, trading volume and share prices volatility across firms is used.
	The international reporting strategy commits firms to substantially increased levels of disclosures. The disclosure levels in Germany under German GAAP have been characterized as being low. 

The authors could not establish a clear conclusion concerning the cost of equity capital. They suggest leaving this issue for further research.


Chapter 5
Research methodology
In this chapter, the research methodology will be outlined. The development of the research will be divided into different paragraphs. Paragraph 5.1, explains the empirical model that will be use to test the hypothesis. Paragraph 5.2 provides the method of sample selection. Paragraph 5.3 presents the data sources needed for the variables of the empirical model. The last paragraph summaries this chapter. 

5.1
Empirical model

This paragraph will comment the empirical model that is developed for the analyses in this thesis. There exist various research types. There are three types of research:

· Qualitative research:  

· Quantitative research;

· Secondary or desk research

The second type of research, quantitative research, will be use for this research. The research will be a data research with execution in the statistical program SPSS. The reason for choosing this research method, looking to the necessary and available data for this research, it is the most efficient method to answer to the research question.

· As signaled in the chapters before, the focus of the thesis lies on the relation between the switch of German GAAP to IFRS and the cost of equity capital. The research is focusing on whether the transition has decreased the cost of equity capital. The research method will be different from the research method of Daske (2006). As commented in the literature review, Bevers (2009) did a similar research but for the Dutch listed companies. The conclusion of Bevers was that the introduction of IFRS had led to a lower cost of capital. The research method of Bevers (2009) will be the basis of the research method for this thesis. The research method of Bevers is to be adjusted on various points. The research will be different on the follow points:

· Bevers use the AEG model (Ohlson and Juettner-Nauroth 2005) to determine the cost of equity capital. Daske (2006) used also the AEG model to compute the cost of equity capital. In addition, Daske (2006) also use of the RIV model for the computing. To compute the cost of equity capital in this research the PEG model (Easton 2004) will be used. See below by step one for more details;

· In contrary to Bevers (2009), the used multiple regression model will be different. The regression model of Bevers (2009) will be used as a basic model. Various variables will be eliminated and new variables will be adapted into the regression model. See below by step two for details about the regression model;

· The multiple regression models included an error-term. In the regression model of Bevers (2009) did not adapted an error-term. Because the model will not be completely accurate, and will result in differing results during real world application, the error term is included. Bevers didn’t adopted the error-term in his model, and don’t considered that the model was not completely accurate;
· The sample period differs in contrary with the sample of Bevers (2009) and Daske (2006). Bevers (2009) used the sample period 2003 to 2006 (4 years). Daske (2006) used the sample period 1993 to 2005. To provide a better overview of the fluctuation of the cost of equity capital in the transition period of IFRS to German GAAP, the sample period 2002 to 2007 (6 years) is selected. 
· The sample size differs in contrary with the size of Bevers (2009) and Daske (2006). Bevers had a sample size of 62 Dutch listed companies, and Daske had a sample size of 735 German companies (Daske 2006, 347). The sample will concentrate on the DAX 100. 
A research method is developed with 3 steps, a so-called 3-step approach. The models that are used in this study are reflected in the three steps. The first step of the approach is the determination of the cost of equity capital. The PEG model will be used to determine the cost of equity capital. The second step is developing a multiple regression model. This step consists also of collecting the data for the various variables. The third step is the data analyzing with the use of the computer program SPSS. Below, the content of the three steps will be explained. 

Step 1

The first step is to analyze the selected companies of the DAX 100
. In this step the cost of equity capital of the selected companies will be determine. The analyses are for a period of 6 years (2002 – 2007). To give a clear underlying thought the formula of PEG model is repeated in figure 5.1, as signaled in chapter 4, 

       Figure 5.1: Peg Model
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= expected earnings per share for two year ahead
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= expected earnings per share for one year ahead
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    = is the current share price

The PEG formula described in words, the cost of equity capital is the root of earnings per share for two year ahead minus earnings per share for one year ahead, and this need to be divided with the current share price at year-end. The  [image: image44.png]eps, .,
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, otherwise the observation will be eliminated.
Step 2

To test the hypotheses developed in chapter 4, paragraph 4.4, a model needs to develop. The model as used by Bevers (2009) is the base for the model for this research. The model of Bevers is a multiple regression model that examines the relationship between IFRS and cost of equity capital. The model (see figure 5.2) of Bevers looks as follow:

Figure 5.2: Regression model of Bevers

COEC = β0 + β1 IFRS + β2 VAR + β3 LEV + β4 BMR + β5 ROA + β6 US + β7 SIZE + β8 CPI

Various variables used in the model of Bevers will be eliminated and various variables will be adopted used in models from prior research. The control variable US is eliminated from the regression because this research depends on German listed companies, and not US listed companies. 

The control-variable CPI is also eliminated from the regression model. CPI stands for Consumer Price Index (CPI). The CPI in the Netherlands is used as measure for the inflation. The inflation can define as the economic situation of Netherland. The Central Bureau for the Statistics
 is the organization who calculates the CPI. Bevers also found that no significant evidence exist to assume that the CPI has an impact on the cost of equity capital. This control variable is eliminated from the regression model. 

A new variable of the regression model of Lee et al. (2008, 19) in the research is adapted. The added control-variable is SG; this variable represents the sales growth. Further, an error-term is added in the regression. The adopted variable and error term will discuss in more details in the next section by explaining the control-variables.

After eliminating variables and adopting new variables, to examine whether a relationship exists between IFRS and the cost of equity capital a new multiple regressions is developed. The regression model (see figure 5.3) is structured as follows:

Figure 5.3: regression model for research

COEC = β0 + β1 IFRS + β2 VAR + β3 LEV + β4 SIZE + β5 BMR + β6 ROA + β7 SG + ε
Dependent variable

In this thesis will be examine the influence of IFRS on the cost of equity capital. The variable COEC is used as a dependent variable. As mention before, based on the prior studies the expectation is that there will be found a decrease in the cost of equity capital. For the calculation of the cost of equity capital, the PEG model is used. 

Independent variable

As signaled before the cost of equity capital is the dependent variable. The variable IFRS is used as independent variable. The core research is what the influence is of the use of IFRS on the cost of equity capital. The variable is included in the regression as a dummy variable. A dummy variable can show a zero of one. The dummy variable equal to one means that IFRS is applied and a dummy variable equal to zero means that IFRS not is applied but Dutch GAAP. The expectation is that the cost of equity capital should decrease when the value of the IFRS dummy is one. 

Control-variables

The IFRS are not the only factor that could have influence on the cost of equity capital. The possible factors that could affect the cost of equity capital in the regression are included as control variable. Each control variable is commented below.

VAR

VAR is the variance of the stock price. The variance of stock price is computed as the annual standard deviation of the monthly stock returns at year-end (Lee et al. 2008, 14). For the monthly stock return the realized earnings per share of the last 12 Months for each year is used. The reason behind the addition of this variable is that companies with a higher variance of the stock price are more risky to in to invest. In a situation with a higher variance of the stock price, the shareholders and other investors required a higher cost of equity capital. The expectation is that a positive relation exists between the variable VAR and the cost of equity capital. 
LEV

LEV is the financial leverage of a company. Financial leverage is the relation between total debt and the end-of-year book value of equity. The financial leverage of a company is computed by divided the debt by the end-of-year book value of equity. In which way lower the equity capital, in which way higher the financial leverage. A high financial leverage could mean that a company borrows a large amount of money against a low equity capital. 

The expectation is that a positive relation exists between financial leverage and cost of capital. The expectation is base on the idea that by a lower financial leverage the company more independent is form third parties (regard capital loans). The company has in this way more equity capital and is stronger and healthy. This will lead to a lower risk for the shareholders and other investors. This will translate in a lower cost of equity capital.  


SIZE

SIZE is the large of the company. The variable size is measured by the total assets. The total assets of companies are different. There are companies with large amounts and companies with small amounts. It is complicated to compare these companies with each other. The solution is to use the logarithm of the total assets. The logarithm is used to assist the calculation of very large amount with very small amounts. The differences between the amounts by use of logarithm become smaller, and it will be in this way easier to compare the amounts of companies. The idea behind the selection of the variable is that a larger company has a lower risk. For example, the risk that the company for bankrupted is expected to be lower than by small companies. The expectation therefore is that a negative relation exists between the total assets and the cost of equity capital.

BMR

BMR is the book-to-market ratio. The BMR is the relation between the book value and the market value of the equity capital end-of-year. The book value is calculated from the company’s balance sheet, and the market value is based on the stock price. The book-to-market ratio is computed by dividing the book value of the company by the market value of the company. A ratio higher than 1 indicates an undervalued stock, a ratio below 1 indicates an overvalued stock (Li 2008). In which way higher the BMR ratio is, in which way higher the risk is and in which way lower the growth opportunities are. Therefore, the expectation is that a positive relation exists between BMR and cost of equity capital. 

ROA  

ROA is the return of assets. The ROA gives investors an idea of in which way effectively the company converts the invested money into net income. The return on assets is computed by dividing the net income by the total assets. The ROA is displayed as a ratio. Because this indicates that the company is earning more money and uses less investment, a higher ROA ratio is better. The expectation is that a negative relation exists between the ROA and the cost of equity capital. 

SG

SG is the Sales Growth. The sales growth is a measure to determine the growth of the sales of a company in a year. The sales growths of companies are different. There are companies with large amount and companies with small amount of sales growth. It is complicated to compare these companies with each other. The solution is to use a logarithm, earlier mention by control-variable SIZE. The differences between the amounts by use of logarithm become smaller, and it will be in this way easier to compare the amounts of companies. The expectation is that a negative relation exists between SG and cost of equity capital. 

ERROR Variable

ε is the error-term, also known as a residual
. The error-term is the result of an incomplete relationship. The error term is the amount at which the equation may be different during the empirical analysis. For instance when the actual dependent variable, COEC, differs from the COEC in the model during an empirical test, then the error term will not be equal to 0. This means that other factors exist that influence COEC. 

The used variables are summarized in the next table 5.2 below with the method of calculation and expectation of the authors about the influence of the variable on the cost of equity capital. 

Step 3

The outcomes of second step are the base for the third step. To test of the hypothesis and determine whether the outcomes of the test are significant, the computer program SPSS for Windows
 is used. The regression is execute once, and not each year. Through utilize of the dummy variable IFRS, will the computer automatically create a dichotomy. A group with and a group without application of IFRS will arise.

To determine whether a relation exists between IFRS and the cost of equity capital, the multiple regressions, developed in step 2, is utilized. A short overview about the analyses, executed with the computer program SPSS for windows, is outlined below. 

First, there will be produced a descriptive statistic overview of the regression model. This overview contains the means, standard deviation, minimum, maximum, and numbers of observations for all the variables
.

Second, the Pearson correlation matrix will be generated. This matrix showed in what extent the independent variable is correlated with the dependent variable. The regression models consist also control-variables. The matrix showed also which control-variable is correlated with the dependent variable and which are not correlated. A correlation with the value of zero means indicate no correlation exists between the two variables. However, opposite if the correlation has the value of 1, and then means that there is a positive correlation between two variables.

Third, a regression will be executed. With the regression, computed with SPSS, evidence obtained to determine whether a relationship exists between the dependent variable and the independent variable. These three points are the main point that becomes featured with SPSS. 
5.2
Sample selection

The focus of this research lies on the DAX 100. German companies are listed on the DAX 100. The database Thomson one “Worldscope” is used to determine the firms listed in the DAX 100. The amount of 100 companies is not the final sample for the analysis. Various companies will eliminate from this group by means of various criteria’s. See table below table 5.1 for the elimination process of companies.
Table 5.1: selected companies after elimination
	Sample size after eliminations companies
	Amounts of elimination
	Amounts left after elimination

	German listed companies
	 
	100

	Companies not listed entire period 2002-2007
	9
	91

	Financial companies
	14
	77

	Total selected companies for sample
	 
	77


The research period in from 2002 until 2007, this is 6 year. This is three years before introduction of IFRS and three years after introduction of IFRS. The first criterion is that all companies are listed on the DAX 100 the entire research period. After investigation, nine companies can be eliminating because these companies were not listed on the DAX 100 the entire research period. After the elimination of these nine companies, the sample of 91 companies will be remaining. 
The companies in the financial and investment sector are excluded from the research period. This criterion is made based on the studies in the literature review. The companies in de financial and investment sector were also excluded. These sectors are excluded from the research period because financial companies have specific requirements, and based on that it is difficult to compare these companies with the other companies. There are total 14 companies that are counted to one of the two sectors. These 14 companies will be eliminated from the sample. After eliminating these companies, a sample of 77 companies will remain or the sample size. 

The final sample for the research will be determined after the data collection process. The data collection process will be commented in chapter 6, paragraph 6.1.
5.3
Data sources

This paragraph commented the used data sources. The data is necessary for computing the PEG ratio and for the regression. This reflects the steps one and two of the 3-step approach. The database Thomson One Banker is de most used database. Thomson One Banker is a database with various components. In particular, the component ‘WorldScope’ is used to find the needed data for this research. The database IBES
 is used to determine the ‘earnings per share” one year later and two year later. Table 5.3 presents the variables which are signaled in step one and step two of paragraph 5.1. 
Table 5.2: overview of sources for variables

	Name of variable 
	Database term
	Database / source

	EPS 1 (future)
	EPS 1
	I/B/E/S  WRDS

	EPS 2 (future)
	EPS 2
	I/B/E/S  WRDS

	Current Stock price
	Price (adjusted)
	DataStream

	IFRS
	WS.AcctgStandardsFollowed
	Worldscope

	VAR 
	EPS (realized per monthly)
	I/B/E/S  WRDS 

	LEV
	WS.TotalDebt / WS.TotalCommonEquity
	Worldscope

	SIZE (logarithm)
	WS.TotalAssets
	Worldscope

	BMR
	WS. BookToPriceRatioClose
	Worldscope

	ROA
	WS.ReturnOnAssets
	Worldscope

	SG (logarithm) 
	WS.Sales
	Worldscope


5.4
Summary

This chapter commented the research methodology. The research method for the analysis is developed in this chapter. The first paragraph signaled the empirical model. A three-step approach is developed. Step one, calculation of the cost of equity capital ratio with the PEG Model (Easton 2004). Step two, a multiple regression model is developed to determine whether a relation exists between the introduction of IFRS and the cost of equity capital. Step three, execute the regression with the computer program SPSS for windows.
The second paragraph commented the sample selection. The basis for the sample size is the DAX 100. Various companies were eliminated from this group by means of various criteria’s. The final sample size for the analysis is 77 companies. The research period is from 2002 to 2007, 6 years.

The third paragraph commented the data sources needed for the variables of the empirical model. The data for the utilized variables for the regression will found in several databases. The most applied database is Worldscope. The follow chapter shows the results of the analysis.   
Chapter 6
Empirical Results

The empirical results of the analysis will be commented in this chapter. Paragraph 6.2, presents the data collection of this research. Paragraph 6.2 presents the descriptive statistics, followed by paragraph 6.3, the Pearson correlation matrix. This matrix illustrates the extent to which the independent variable is correlated with the dependent variable. Paragraph 6.4 presents the results of the regression analysis. The last paragraph summaries this chapter. 
6.1
Data collection 

Chapter 5, paragraph 5.2, commented the subject sample selection. The sample for the analysis was determined at 77 companies. The data collection process is the process in gathering data for the variables. The data for the variables was for various companies not available or was not enough to include them in de final sample for analysis. There was not or not enough data available for 11 of the 77 companies. These companies where eliminated from the final sample for analysis. The final sample for the analysis consists out 66 companies. The sample period was determined, in chapter 5, from 2002 to 2007, 6 years. This results in 396 firm year observations for this analysis. In appendix D is a list adopted with all companies that are included in the sample size.

6.2
Descriptive statistics

This paragraph commented the descriptive statistics for this research
. The descriptive statistics of each variable gives the reader an understanding about all used variable in the research. The descriptive statistics gives information like the minimum, maximum, means, and the standard deviation of each variable. 
	Table: 6.1 Descriptive Statistics

	
	N
	Minimum
	Maximum
	Means
	Std. Deviation

	PEG Ratio
	396
	,00
	,52
	,0225
	,03707

	IFRS
	396
	,00
	1,00
	,5000
	,50063

	Variance
	396
	,19
	23,32
	2,3426
	2,35996

	Leverage
	394
	,00
	18,18
	,9987
	1,51952

	Firm Size
	394
	1,67
	5,37
	3,5163
	,83750

	Book to Market Value 
	394
	,15
	14,47
	2,2626
	1,95564

	Return On Assets
	394
	-14,67
	35,88
	3,7680
	2,84509

	Sales Growth 
	394
	-15,29
	78,81
	5,8200
	7,42267


Table 6.1 presents the descriptive statistics of the used variables. The main variables are the dependent and independent variables. The meaning of the dependent variable (PEG ratio) is 0, 0225 and the standard deviation is 0, 03707. The meaning of the independent variable (IFRS) is 0, 5000 and the standard deviation is 0, 50063. The meaning of the dependent variable can be calculated for each year independent. Through the calculation per year is it possible show a tendency, provided that a tendency exists.
	Table: 6.2 Descriptive Statistics each year

	
	N
	Minimum
	Maximum
	Mean
	Std. Deviation

	PEG Ratio Total 
	396
	,00
	,47
	,1254
	,05941

	PEG Ratio 2002
	66
	,00
	,14
	,0277
	,03206

	PEG Ratio 2003
	66
	,00
	,18
	,0293
	,03416

	PEG Ratio 2004
	66
	,00
	,52
	,0302
	,06491

	PEG Ratio 2005
	66
	,00
	,19
	,0198
	,02987

	PEG Ratio 2006
	66
	,00
	,09
	,0137
	,01671

	PEG Ratio 2007
	66
	,00
	,15
	,0143
	,02201


Table 6.2 presents the descriptive statistics per year for the dependent variable. The meaning of the dependent variable is as follow: 2002 = 0, 0277, 2003 = 0, 0293, 2004 = 0, 0302, 2005 = 0, 0198, 2006 = 0, 0137, 2007 = 0, and 0143. From 2005, there is a decline perceptible. In the row ‘means’ was in 2004 0, 0302, and was declined in 2005 to 0, 0198. The temporary conclusion can be made that the PEG ratio is declined since 2005. This means that after the introduction of IFRS in 2005, the cost of equity capital is decreased. This is a temporary conclusion based on the ‘means’. There is more evidence needed to say that the cost of equity capital is decreased after the introduction of IFRS in 2005. Paragraph 6.3 provides perhaps more evidence through the regression analysis. The descriptive statistics per year is presented in a graphic, see figure 6.1 for the graphic. 

Figure 6.1: trend of dependent variable, shown per year
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	Table: 6,3 Descriptive Statistics before IFRS and after IFRS

	
	N
	Means

	PEG Ratio Total 
	396
	,1254

	PEG Ratio 2002 – 2004
	198
	,0290

	PEG Ratio 2005 -2007
	198
	,0159


Table 6.3 presents the descriptive statistics before IFRS and after IFRS for the dependent variable. The ‘means’ before IFRS is 0, 0290, and after IFRS is 0, 0159. The ‘mean’ is almost halved in the period after introduction of IFRS. The following paragraph will comment the Pearson Correlation Matrix.
6.3
Pearson Correlation Matrix
The Pearson correlation matrix is chosen to measure the correlation among the dependent and independent variables. The matrix shows the correlation between variables in a simple manner. The main variables are the dependent and the independent variable, respectively the Cost of Equity Capital (COEC) and the IFRS. See table 6.4 below for the correlation matrix. 
According to table 6.4, a significant negative correlation exists between the IFRS dummy and the cost of equity capital. The amount of the negative correlation is 0,177. The negative correlation means that de cost of equity capital was declined with 0,270 in the transition period.
	Table 6.4: Pearson Correlation Matrix

	
	PEG Ratio
	IFRS
	Variance
	Leverage
	Firm Size
	Book to Market Value 
	Return On Assets
	Sales Growth 

	PEG Ratio
	1,000
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	IFRS
	-,177
	1,000
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Variance
	-,021
	,150
	1,000
	
	
	
	
	

	Leverage
	,012
	-,008
	,098
	1,000
	
	
	
	

	Firm Size
	-,138
	-,048
	,072
	,174
	1,000
	
	
	

	Book to Market Value 
	-,060
	,277
	,114
	,445
	,319
	1,000
	
	

	Return On Assets
	-,055
	,066
	,003
	,038
	,142
	,019
	1,000
	

	Sales Growth 
	-,086
	-,136
	-,040
	-,277
	-,085
	-,369
	-,066
	1,000


The control variables have also a correlation with the dependent variable. The correlations are commented here below.

· Variance: 

Variance is the variance of the stock price. There exist a negative correlation between the variables; Variance and PEG Ratio. The amount of the negative correlation is 0,021. The outcome is the opposite of the expectation. The expectation was a positive relation between the Variance and the PEG Ratio. 
· Leverage:

Leverage is the financial leverage of a company. There exist a positive correlation between the variables; Leverage and PEG Ratio. The amount of the positive correlation is 0.012. This is not a large positive correlation. The expectation was that a positive correlation exists between the two variables. The conclusion and the expectation were the same;
· Firm size:
The firm size is the extent of the company. The measure for this variable is the total assets. There exists a negative correlation between the variables: firm size and PEG Ratio.

The amount of the negative correlation is 0,138. The expectation is the same as the conclusion;

· Book to Market Ratio (BMR):

The BMR signaled the relation between two values: the book value and the market value end-of-year. There exists a negative correlation between the variables: BMR and PEG Ratio. The amount of the negative correlation is 0,060. The correlation is not strong, but there is a correlation. The expectation was that a positive correlation exists between the variable BMR and COEC. The expectation was not correct because there exists a negative correlation. 
· Return on Assets (ROA):

There exists a negative correlation between the variables: ROA and PEG Ratio. The amount of the negative correlation is 0,055. The expectation is the same as the conclusion;
· Sales Growth:

The sales growth is a measure for determining the growth of the sales of a company. There exists a negative correlation between the variables: Sales Growth and PEG Ratio. The amount of the negative correlation is 0,086. The expectation was that a negative correlation exists between the two variables. The expectation was correct according the outcome.

6.4
Regression analyzes

A regression model is developed for the analysis in this research. This paragraph commented the results of the analysis. The regression model developed in chapter 5, paragraph 5.1. The regression model is presented in figure 6.2 below. 

Figure 6.2: regression model for research

COEC = β0 + β1 IFRS + β2 VAR + β3 LEV + β4 SIZE + β5 BMR + β6 ROA + β7 SG + ε
There is one dependent variable and one independent variable, respectively COEC and IFRS.

These two variables are the most important variables in de regression model. There are beside the IFRS variable, another variable that could have influences on the COEC. These variables are included in the regression model as control variables. 

In this research the question is to examine, whether the transition of German GAAP to IFRS causes to a lower cost of equity capital. The regression is executed and the results of the regression are presented in table 6.5
 below. After the results of table 6.5 the analysis will be commented. 
	Table: 6.5 outcome regression analysis.

	Variable
	Coefficient
	p-value

	Intercept

IFRS

VAR

LEV

SIZE

BMR

ROA

SG
	6,765
	,000
	**

	
	-,201
	,000
	**
	

	
	,015
	,764
	
	

	
	,003
	,953
	
	

	
	-,155
	,004
	**
	

	
	-,005
	,009
	**
	

	
	-,028
	,571
	
	

	
	-,128
	0,17
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	Adjusted R Square
	0,053 = 5,3 %

	N
	396




   ** = signification (0, 05 level)
The hypothesis may be tested with the result in table 6.5. The signification level and the P-value of the IFRS are needed. The P-value is an amount between the 0 and 1, and indicated the power of a variable to prove the correlation. A high P-value indicates poor evidence against the H0. A P-value smaller then the signification level, indicates strong evidence against the H0. When the P-value is smaller than the signification level, H0 must be rejected and the H1 need to be accepted. Nevertheless, having the opposite, the P-Value is greater than the signification level, the H0 need to be accepted. Consequently, H1 is rejected. The coefficient of IFRS is -0,201 and the P-value is 0,000.  The P-value is 0,000 and the signification level is determined at 0.05. This means that the P-value, of 0,000, is smaller than the signification level, of 0, 05. 

The Adjusted R Square is a statistic that gives information about the goodness of fit of the model. The Adjusted R2 coefficient is a measure that shows information about in which way well the regression line approximated the real data points. A 1, 0 for the adjusted R2 indicated that the regression line perfectly fits the data. The adjusted R square for this research is 0,053; this is 5, 3 %. This percent shows that by this model 5, 3 % of the variation in the cost of equity capital is determined. This percentage is low; this means a small part of the various is explained by this model. 
Two of the six control variables are significant because the P-value is lower than the signification level of 0, 05. Both variables, SIZE and BMR, has a P-value of respectively 0,004 and 0,009. The conclusion is that there strong evidence that these two control variables had influence on the COEC variable (dependent variable).

Four of the six control variables are not significant because the P-value is higher than the signification level of 0, 05. The four variables are: VAR, LEV, ROA, and SG. The variable VAR has a P-value of 0,764. The value is greater that the signification level of 0, 05, therefore is the VAR is not significant. The variable LEV has a P-value of 0,953. The value is greater that the signification level of 0, 05, therefore is the LEV is not significant. The variable ROA has a P-value of 0,511. The value is greater that the signification level of 0, 05, therefore is the ROA is not significant. The variable SG has a P-value of 0,170. The value is greater that the signification level of 0, 05, therefore is the SG is not significant. The conclusion is that there is the four variables have poor influence on the COEC (dependent variable).

The regression analysis from table 6.5 is billed as follow:

Cost of equity capital = 6,765 – 0,201 * IFRS + 0,015 * VAR + 0,003 * LEV – 0,155 * SIZE 
   – 0,005 * BMR – 0,028 * ROA – 0,128 * SG
6.5
Summary

This chapter signaled the empirical results of the conducted analysis. As indicated in paragraph 6.1, the data collection is explained in this paragraph. The sample for this analysis was determined at 77 companies. But because lack on information 11 companies have been eliminated. In paragraph 6.2 the descriptive statistics of the research is commented. According to this statistics there is a decline since 2005. That means there could be made a temporary conclusion based on this statistic outcome namely the cost of equity capital is decreased after the introduction of IFRS. Paragraph 6.3 provided the Pearson correlation matrix with the correlation among the dependent and independent variables. Paragraph 6.4 shows the results of the regression analyses. The following chapter will comment the conclusions and future studies related on this study. 

Chapter 7
Summary
This chapter provides answers to the hypotheses that are commented in chapter 4, paragraph 4, 4. The first paragraph provides general conclusions and answers at the hypotheses. The second paragraph commented limitations of this study. The third paragraph commented recommendations for further research based on this study. 
7.1
Conclusions

According to Daske (2006) research there was an increase in the cost of equity capital by using the IFRS in Germany. The emphasis in the first instance of Daske (2006) before he was doing his research was on the decreasing of the expected cost of equity capital. But after doing his research he failed to document a lower expected cost of equity capital. In the outcome of Daske’s (2006) research there was an increase in the cost of equity capital.

In this research the emphasis also lies to document a lower cost of equity capital by using the IFRS in Germany. This emphasis was based on the prior research and literature. As indicated in chapter 4, the literature review, there are several studies that documented lower cost of equity capital by using the IFRS. 
To make a concrete result for this research, the research question is: 

“Has the introduction of IFRS lead to a lower cost of equity capital in Germany?”

A hypothesis is developed for answering the research question. The hypothesis is developed as follow: 

Hypothesis 1:

H0: The introduction of IFRS in Germany has no influence on cost of equity capital.  

H1: The introduction of IFRS in Germany has influence cost of equity capital.
Hypothesis 2:

H0: The introduction of IFRS in Germany led not to a lower cost of equity capital.  

H1: The introduction of IFRS in Germany led to a lower cost of equity capital.
The expected negative relation between the dependent and independent variable, respectively COEC and IFRS, is indicated in chapter 6, paragraph 6.4, in table 6.5. The coefficient of the IFRS variable is

-0, 201. And the negative relation is significant with 0, 000. As indicated in paragraph 6.4, table 6.5 the level of signification is 0, 05. That means H0 need to be rejected and H1 can be accepted. 
After doing this research the conclusion is that there is a decrease in the cost of equity capital by using the IFRS in Germany. Unfortunately, Daske’s (2006) research concluded an increase in the cost of equity capital and this research concludes a decrease in the cost of equity capital. The conclusion of this research is based on the analysis of chapter 6. 

There could be two reasons why this research came to the conclusion of decrease in the cost of equity capital, namely:
· The research period of this research was from 2002 to 2007 and Daske’s (2006) research period was from 1993 to 2002. The research period of this research is chosen from 2002 because before 2002 Daske has already done his research until 2002. The result of Daske’s (2006) research was an increase of the cost of equity capital by using the IFRS, which was the guideline of this research. The emphasis of this research was also on an increase of the cost of equity capital but in a different period, namely from 2002 to 2007. Besides, since 2005 using of IFRS became mandatory for stock exchange quoted companies. In this research the result is based on 3 years before and 3 years after the mandatory of IFRS. In contrast to Daske (2006), the research period from 1993 to 2002 using IFRS was not mandatory.  
· Daske (2006) used for calculating the expected cost of equity capital the RIV and the AEG model. According to Daske (2006) the RIV and AEG model can be considered as the ‘state- of- the- art’
 model.  Daske (2006) mentioned in his research that with these models he determined the cost of equity capital as an implied rate of return of a valuation model. In this research the PEG model is used. Botosan and Plumlee (2005) made a comparison between the RIV and the AEG model. The RIV model according to Botosan and Plumlee (2005) was too complicated and it needs more assumptions to implement this model. The AEG model is inferior then the PEG model seen in all countries. According to Botosan and Plumlee (2005) and Easton and Monahan (2005) the PEG model is the best model to estimate the cost of equity capital because the result gives a better measure for the alternatives concerning the risks proxies.
7.2
Limitations

Before complete this analysis several limitation exist according this study. First, this study focuses only on the DAX 100 companies. These companies are German stock exchange quoted companies. The outcomes of this research are not suitable for companies from other countries. Second, the outcomes also are not suitable for companies in the financial and investment sector, because these companies in were eliminated from the sample. 

7.3
Recommendations and suggestion for further research 
Future studies could be may be focus on the other part of cost of capital, namely cost of debt capital. Another study can be executed what kind of effect did occur after the credit crunch on the cost of equity capital. There could be a research done on the investors concerning how they look to the IFRS standards after the credit crunch and what are the consequences on the capital market after this crunch. 
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Appendix A

The model of Li (2008)

The multiple regression model (firm and year subscripts are suppressed):

[image: image47.png]Cost of equity capital = oy + a;*Dummy for Mandatory IAS adopters + az*Dummy
for Post-mandatory adoption period + az*Dummy for Mandatory IAS adopters * Dummy
for Post-mandatory adoption period + ay*Private placement + as*OTC listing+
as*Exchange listing + az*Inflation + as*Log_total assets + ag*Return variability +
ajp*Leverage + a,*Dindustry + a,*DCountry + &




Where,

“Cost of equity capital: the mean of rmpeg (implied cost of equity capital estimates based on modified PEG ratio by Easton (2004)), rgm (implied cost of equity capital estimates based on Gode and Mohanram (2003)), rct (implied cost of equity capital estimates based on Claus and Thomas (2001)), and rgls (implied cost of equity capital estimates based on Gebhardt et al. (2001)).

· Dummy for mandatory IAS adopters: a dummy variable equal to one if a firm does not adopt IAS until 2005, and zero otherwise. 

· Dummy for post-mandatory adoption period: a dummy variable equal to one if a firm-year observation falls in 2005 or later, and zero otherwise.

· Dummy for mandatory IAS adopters* Dummy for post-mandatory adoption period: the interaction term between the two dummy variables” (Li 2008).
· Private placement: a dummy variable equal to one if a firm has a private placement under Rule 144A according to JP Morgan ADR Analytics.

· OTC listing: a dummy variable equal to one if a firm trades its shares in the over-the counter markets of the U.S. according to JP Morgan ADR Analytics.

· Exchange listing: a dummy variable equal to one if a firm trades its shares on the NYSE, NASDAQ or AMEX according to JP Morgan ADR Analytics. 

· Inflation: the yearly median of country-specific, one-year-ahead monthly inflation rates.

· Log_total assets: the natural logarithm of total assets in millions of U.S. dollars at year end.

· Return variability: the return variability computed as the annual standard deviation of monthly stock returns at year end.

· Leverage: financial leverage computed as the total liabilities divided by total assets at year end.

· DIndustry: dummy variables indicating a firm’s industry membership based on the industry classification in Campbell (1996).

· DCountry: dummy variables for countries.

Appendix B

Calculated cost of equity capital by Bevers (2009). This calculated cost of equity capital is used as the dependent variable in the regression model.
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Where:

- COEC = Cost of equity capital;

- EPS1 and EPS2 = the expected earnings per share in year 1 and year 2;

- DPS1 = the expected dividend per share in year 1;

- P0 = current price of the share


Appendix C

One of the model that Daske et al. (2008) uses for computing the cost of capital 

The dependent variable that a Daske et al. (2008) use is Tobin’s q. It is a metric that is frequently used in the corporate finance literature (e.g., Servaes (1991), Lang and Stulz (1994) as well as in international studies (La Porta et al. (2002), Doidge, Karolyi, and Stulz (2004), Lang, Lins, and Miller (2004). Higher values of Tobin’s q could reflect differences in expected discount rates and/or differences in expected future cash flows (or growth expectations). It is therefore a more comprehensive measure than the cost of capital. If, for instance, better transparency increases growth expectations (e.g., because better transparency improves outsiders’ ability to monitor controlling insiders), Tobin’s q can capture the resulting changes in future expected cash flows, even when the cost of capital stays constant. Tobin’s q also captures costs associated with the implementation of IFRS (e.g., auditing fees). 

Furthermore, a decrease in the cost of capital should, ceteris paribus, result in an increase in Tobin’s q. Daske et al.(2008) compute Tobin’s q as (total assets – book value of equity + market value of equity) scaled by total assets (Daske et al. (2008)

 Appendix D

The sample size was 77 companies. Because there was no data of 11 companies available, 66 companies has left to make this research possible. This sample is determined after the data collection. These companies are stock exchange listed.
	Nr.
	 Name of company
	Sector

	1
	Adidas
	Personal Goods

	2
	Agiv Real Estate
	Real Estate Investment & Servi

	3
	Altana
	Chemicals

	4
	Babcock Borsig
	Industrial Engineering

	5
	BASF
	Chemicals

	6
	Bayer
	Chemicals

	7
	Beate Uhse
	General Retailers

	8
	Beiersdorf
	Personal Goods

	9
	Beru
	Automobiles & Parts

	10
	Bilfinger Berger
	Construction & Materials

	11
	Cargolifter
	Aerospace & Defense

	12
	Celanese
	Chemicals

	13
	Continental
	Automobiles & Parts

	14
	Daimler
	Automobiles & Parts

	15
	Deutsche Lufthansa
	Travel & Leisure

	16
	Deutsche Post
	Industrial Transportation

	17
	Deutsche Telekom
	Mobile Telecommunications

	18
	DIS Deutsche Industrie Services
	Support Services

	19
	Douglas Holding
	General Retailers

	20
	Duerr
	Industrial Engineering

	21
	E ON
	Gas, Water & Multiutilities

	22
	Epcos
	Electronic & Electrical Equipm

	23
	Escada
	Personal Goods

	24
	Fielmann
	General Retailers

	25
	Fraport
	Industrial Transportation

	26
	Gerry Weber International
	Personal Goods

	27
	GFK
	Media

	28
	Gildemeister
	Industrial Engineering

	29
	Heidelbergcement
	Construction & Materials

	30
	Heidelberger Druckmaschinen
	Industrial Engineering

	31
	Hochtief
	Construction & Materials

	32
	Indus Holding
	General Industrials

	33
	Infineon Technologies
	Technology Hardware & Equipmen

	34
	IVG Immobilien
	Real Estate Investment & Servi

	35
	Jenoptik
	Industrial Engineering

	36
	Jungheinrich
	Industrial Engineering

	37
	K + S
	Chemicals

	38
	Koenig and Bauer
	Industrial Engineering

	39
	Krones
	Industrial Engineering

	40
	Linde
	Chemicals

	41
	Loewe
	Leisure Goods

	42
	Man
	Industrial Engineering

	43
	Merck Kgaa
	Pharmaceuticals & Biotechnolog

	44
	Metro
	General Retailers

	45
	Norddeutsche Affinerie
	Industrial Metals & Mining

	46
	Phoenix Dead - Mgerger 929030
	Automobiles & Parts

	47
	Prosieben Sat 1 Media
	Media

	48
	Puma Rudolf Dassler Sport
	Personal Goods

	49
	Rheinmetall
	Automobiles & Parts

	50
	Rhoen-Klinikum
	Health Care Equipment & Servic

	51
	RWE
	Gas, Water & Multiutilities

	52
	Salzgitter
	Industrial Metals & Mining

	53
	SAP
	Software & Computer Services

	54
	Schwarz Pharma
	Pharmaceuticals & Biotechnolog

	55
	SGL Carbon
	Industrial Engineering

	56
	Siemens
	General Industrials

	57
	Sixt
	General Retailers

	58
	Software
	Software & Computer Services

	59
	Stada Arzneimittel
	Pharmaceuticals & Biotechnolog

	60
	Suedzucker
	Food Producers

	61
	Techem
	Support Services

	62
	Thyssenkrupp
	General Industrials

	63
	TUI
	Travel & Leisure

	64
	Volkswagen
	Automobiles & Parts

	65
	Vossloh
	Industrial Engineering

	66
	Zapf Creation
	Leisure Goods


Appendix E
Here below are the Original SPSS output’s.

Descriptive statistics:

Analyze ( Descriptive statistics ( Descriptive
	Descriptive Statistics

	
	N
	Minimum
	Maximum
	Mean
	Std. Deviation

	PEG Ratio
	396
	,00
	,52
	,0225
	,03707

	IFRSS
	396
	,00
	1,00
	,5000
	,50063

	Variance
	396
	,19
	23,32
	2,3426
	2,35996

	Leverage
	394
	,00
	18,18
	,9987
	1,51952

	Firm Size
	394
	1,67
	5,37
	3,5163
	,83750

	Book to Market Value 
	394
	,15
	14,47
	2,2626
	1,95564

	Return On Assets
	394
	-14,67
	35,88
	3,7680
	2,84509

	Sales Growth 
	394
	-15,29
	78,81
	5,8200
	7,42267

	Valid N (listwise)
	394
	
	
	
	


It is possible to compute the ‘mean’ of the dependent variable for each year independent. The ‘mean’ must be calculated each year separately. This can be done with the SPSS program. The variable is split up in 6 years. With SPSS it’s possible to select only one year, and calculate with that year. 

Data ( Select Cases. 

The IFRS YEARS variable is chosen, then the option “if condition is satisfied”. Give the rule: IFRS YEARS = X. X stands for the number of the years. Calculate the mean for year 2002, then X=2.

	Descriptive Statistics 2002

	
	N
	Minimum
	Maximum
	Mean
	Std. Deviation

	PEG Ratio
	66
	,00
	,14
	,0277
	,03206

	IFRS YEARS
	66
	2,00
	2,00
	2,0000
	,00000

	Valid N (listwise)
	66
	
	
	
	


	Descriptive Statistics 2003

	
	N
	Minimum
	Maximum
	Mean
	Std. Deviation

	PEG Ratio
	66
	,00
	,18
	,0293
	,03416

	IFRS YEARS
	66
	3,00
	3,00
	3,0000
	,00000

	Valid N (listwise)
	66
	
	
	
	


	Descriptive Statistics 2004

	
	N
	Minimum
	Maximum
	Mean
	Std. Deviation

	PEG Ratio
	66
	,00
	,52
	,0302
	,06491

	IFRS YEARS
	66
	4,00
	4,00
	4,0000
	,00000

	Valid N (listwise)
	66
	
	
	
	

	Descriptive Statistics 2005

	
	N
	Minimum
	Maximum
	Mean
	Std. Deviation

	PEG Ratio
	66
	,00
	,19
	,0198
	,02987

	IFRS YEARS
	66
	5,00
	5,00
	5,0000
	,00000

	Valid N (listwise)
	66
	
	
	
	


	Descriptive Statistics 2006

	
	N
	Minimum
	Maximum
	Mean
	Std. Deviation

	PEG Ratio
	66
	,00
	,09
	,0137
	,01671

	IFRS YEARS
	66
	6,00
	6,00
	6,0000
	,00000

	Valid N (listwise)
	66
	
	
	
	


	Descriptive Statistics 2007

	
	N
	Minimum
	Maximum
	Mean
	Std. Deviation

	PEG Ratio
	66
	,00
	,15
	,0143
	,02201

	IFRS YEARS
	66
	7,00
	7,00
	7,0000
	,00000

	Valid N (listwise)
	66
	
	
	
	


Pearson Correlation Matrix:
Analyze ( Correlate ( bivariate

	Correlations

	
	
	PEG Ratio
	IFRSS
	Variance
	Leverage
	Firm Size
	Book to Market Value 
	Return On Assets
	Sales Growth 

	Pearson Correlation
	PEG Ratio
	1,000
	-,177
	-,021
	,012
	-,138
	-,060
	-,055
	-,086

	
	IFRSS
	-,177
	1,000
	,150
	-,008
	-,048
	,277
	,066
	-,136

	
	Variance
	-,021
	,150
	1,000
	,098
	,072
	,114
	,003
	-,040

	
	Leverage
	,012
	-,008
	,098
	1,000
	,174
	,445
	,038
	-,277

	
	Firm Size
	-,138
	-,048
	,072
	,174
	1,000
	,319
	,142
	-,085

	
	Book to Market Value
	-,060
	,277
	,114
	,445
	,319
	1,000
	,019
	-,369

	
	Return On Assets
	-,055
	,066
	,003
	,038
	,142
	,019
	1,000
	-,066

	
	Sales Growth
	-,086
	-,136
	-,040
	-,277
	-,085
	-,369
	-,066
	1,000


Regression analysis:

Analyze ( Regression ( linear
	Coefficientsa

	Model
	Unstandardized Coefficients
	Standardized Coefficients
	t
	Sig.
	95% Confidence Interval for B
	Correlations

	
	B
	Std. Error
	Beta
	
	
	Lower Bound
	Upper Bound
	Zero-order
	Partial
	Part

	1
	(Constant)
	,059
	,009
	
	6,765
	,000
	,042
	,076
	
	
	

	
	IFRSS
	-,015
	,004
	-,201
	-3,790
	,000
	-,023
	-,007
	-,177
	-,189
	-,186

	
	Variance
	,000
	,001
	,015
	,301
	,764
	-,001
	,002
	-,021
	,015
	,015

	
	Leverage
	8,068E-5
	,001
	,003
	,059
	,953
	-,003
	,003
	,012
	,003
	,003

	
	Firm Size
	-,007
	,002
	-,155
	-2,915
	,004
	-,012
	-,002
	-,138
	-,147
	-,143

	
	Book to Market Value 
	-9,208E-5
	,001
	-,005
	-,077
	,009
	-,002
	,002
	-,060
	-,004
	-,004

	
	Return On Assets
	,000
	,001
	-,028
	-,567
	,571
	-,002
	,001
	-,055
	-,029
	-,028

	
	Sales Growth 
	,000
	,000
	-,128
	-2,391
	,017
	-,001
	,000
	-,086
	-,121
	-,117

	a. Dependent Variable: PEG Ratio
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	


� IASB: International Accounting Standard Board; In April 2001, the IASC has been taken over by the IASB. 


This organization modifies the existing accounting rules and develops new accounting rules.  





� The differences in the methods will be present in Chapter 5 Research methodology.


� DAX 100 (Deutscher Aktienindex 100) is a German price-weighted index of that country’s top 100 stocks. The DAX 100 includes names  


such as Bayer Commerzbank, BMW and Schering. The DAX 100 is a part of the German Stock Exchange   


Index family. The German Stock Exchange publishes a DAX 100 price index (HKDX).  


� The several countries: Australia, Canada, France, Germany, Japan, Mexico, Netherlands, United Kingdom, 


Ireland and the United States. 


� Example of risk: in a company with money problems will be the rate of return higher than normal. The risk must 


be managed by the company.


� The two line get to each other, but they do not  intersect each other


� Unfortunately, Lee et al. didn’t mention in their research report what the analysts’ expectation contains.


� The reason why Lee et al. used the WACC (weighted average cost of capital) was to make a meaningful 


comparison across time and across European economies that differ in the relative importance of their corporate 


debt and corporate equity markets, (Lee et al. 2006). The WACC doesn’t brings any added value to this research 


paper, so that’s why the model is not described.


� These two are the most important variables. The rest of the variables will be presents in appendix A.


� The four models that are used by Li (2008) do not have any added value for the research. Furthermore, Li 


(2008) didn’t explain the models clearly in her research.


� Regression model of Bevers is presented in appendix B.


� The four methods are not explained because Daske et al. (2008) didn’t explain the formula. Daske et al. (2008) 


described the assumption behind the formulas but this has no added value to this research.


� Appendix C will describe Tobin’s q.


� This because according to the research of Hail and Leuz (2007), the fiscal year end of those firms is not in 


December)


� Deutscher Aktieindex. 100


� Firms produce financial statements that are as close as possible to IAS or US-GAAP without violating German 


GAAP. That is using their discretion under German GAAP. Firms decide on accounting methods, compatible 


with international standards.


� The sample selection is commented in the next paragraph.


� In Dutch is this “Centraal Bureau voor de Statistieken “, abbreviation CBS


� A residual is the difference between the observed value of the dependent variable and the predicted value.


� Windows is an operating system of Microsoft. Windows is the most used operation system in the world


� All variables are: dependent variable + independent variable + control variables.


� IBES: ‘Institutional Brokers Estimate System'. The database consists such as earnings per share for over 


     45,000 companies in 70 markets. 


� All data that is used in this research is included in a form of a cd-rom. See last page of this paper for the 


    cd-rom 


� Table 6.5 is build with information out several overviews. See Appendix E for the original SPSS overviews.


� Daske (2006) didn’t mentioned in his research what he meant by ‘state- of-the-art’model.





PAGE  

_1291885948.unknown

